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Financial Highlights

s HE 2

RMB’000 2019 2018
AR T —E-hFE ZZ—N\F
Revenue EERE 258,158 293,922
Cost of sales 5 & A AR (143,137) (156,425)
Gross profit EH 115,021 137,497
Selling & distribution costs HE ko AR (104,724) (113,360)
Administrative expenses THRAX (30,570) (25,838)
Loss from operations KEEE (12,897) (820)
Income tax credit T 15 #5 [B] # 9,064 —
Loss for the year attributable to owners PiN/NETE N

of the Company ZEFENEIE (15,164) (1,196)
Gross margin S IES 44.6% 46.8%
Net loss ratio FETIEE (5.9%) (0.4%)
Loss per share (RMB cents) BREB(AREWL
Basic =& (0.1929) (0.0378)
Diluted #E (0.1929) (0.0378)
Revenue by Product Category
WARERER D

90.7% 91.0%

(RMB’000)
(AR¥T )

8.6%

7.5%

2019

2018
—z—n&| -2 Nn&

( . )

Sh & hair- duct
. 5%;¥;oéﬁa|r care products 034 142 267 308
Other household & personal care products
HttXAREAZBEER 22,218 22,169
Ki duct:
~ %Jg’(gg‘% proctes 1,798 4,355

N 258,158 | 293,922
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Financial Highlights (Continued)
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MEREGE)
Revenue by Brand Category
WA 2 B B 2 AT
93.5% 92.3%

RMB’000

2.7% 2.9%

0.7% 1.4%

0.2% 0.3%

2019

2018
—B-N\F

ARMTF T —F-N%F
I;aivang 241,488 271,200 |
'%t%) 7,529 8,983
;Ec%al Wind 6,986 8,529
g E‘ébg” 1,844 4,202
. |/_Ji\t¥IKing 311 1,008
o 258,158 293,922
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Dear shareholders of the Company,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of
BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”), |
present the audited annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2019.

The Board hereby reports that the total revenue of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was approximately RMB258.2 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 12.1% from approximately
RMB293.9 million for 2018. The operating loss of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was approximately RMB12.9 million
as compared with an operating loss of approximately RMBO0.8 million
for 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the net loss of the Group
was approximately RMB6.1 million, as compared with a net loss of
approximately RMB1.2 million for 2018.

For further information on the operating performance of the Group,
please refer to the “Financial Review” section of this annual report.

ERNEHHNERTZRR

AAZBRERBIBER(EE)ZRERA
Alxaa2m)zcease((EE8]) @
ERERREBMARALEWME AR (5
(ZEBEDHE T -AF+-_A=+—
BIEFENEERFRERE -

ETeENBELAEEHE_T—NF
T AZ+ " BHLEFENRLEENA
AR2582BE L RZZ— N\FRH
HWARBE2039E BT TR T #121% -
rEEHE-_ZE-—NLF+=-_A=+—H
TFEHERKEEBEBHOARKI208E
T MmM-E-N\FRHPLEBEBEBOAR
Bo8EE T o

AEBEBEE_ZT—NAF+=-_A=+—H
TFEFEHBSFEROABARKIES
T M- N\FRPHKEFEBRBOA
REA2EETT °

ARAREREXEFMEN F2H
AEEHRENMHELEIED -
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During the year under review, the Group continued to operate under
the value-chain-oriented business model, which enabled the Group
to control the cost of sales and operating costs at a sustainable level.

Because of the extensive business shutdowns to contain the spread
of the coronavirus all over the world since early March this year, the
International Monetary Fund (“IMF”) expects that the global economy
will shrink by 3.0% in 2020, which is expected to be the worst
recession since the Great Depression in the 1930s.

Owing to the uncertainties caused by the trade war with the United
States and the coronavirus pandemic, China is facing downside risks
in its economic growth in 2020. However, the IMF has indicated that
China’s economy is forecasted to have a strong growth of 9.2%
when the social and economic life resumes to normalcy in 2021.

For further information on the outlook of the Group, please refer to
the “Outlook” section of this report.

Looking forward, we plan to focus on two areas to drive the strategic
directions to sustain and develop our business in the midst of a
volatile business environment. In the short run, the Group intends to
continue building up a management team with strong experience in
both domestic and global HPC sectors, to regain the sales growth
momentum and profitability, and to improve investors’ confidence on
the Group. In the long run, the Group will continue to focus on
strengthening the business model and positioning to acquire market
shares from domestic and international competitors, maintaining a
multi-brand and multi-product strategy in HPC sectors, and
becoming a leader in the branded Chinese herbal HPC products.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our gratitude to all shareholders, customers, suppliers,
banks, professional parties, and employees of the Group for their
continuous patronage and support.

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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Business Review

During the year under review, to enhance the sales of Bawang
branded products, we successfully upgraded the packaging of two
Bawang branded hair-care product series for the conventional sales
channels, and new packagings were designed with trendy and
professional image together with the introduction of a couple of social
media celebrity versions of Bawang hair-care products that were
created for sales through the conventional channels.

In April 2019, the Group selected a popular Chinese style singer, Mr.
Huo Zun (EH), as our short-term image and brand ambassador for
Bawang branded shampoo and hair-care products. We made full use
of the image of the new brand ambassador to attract consumers’
attention via social media platforms such as Weibo and WeChat,
publicity advertisements posted in city metros and at the points of
sales with the slogan “Exclusive enjoyment of the strength of national
products, choose Bawang anti-hair fall products”, which aimed to
promote Bawang’s anti- hair fall shampoos to catch the attention of
consumers. We rolled out bundled products that were named after
Huo Zun for the purpose of enhancing the Bawang brand image as
national and trendy products for young consumers.

E3 Y EI L

REOEFERN ATREBIREER
MIHE BRI EHR TERRERT
mEMEEEZERRINER - FHE
KEBREHMEE  RWITE - LB
EmBEBIBER INERREHE -

RZZE-NFOA AEERBFTEA
BEAREXRFEEREIAEERNE
HmBERAE A LMD AN
mEREAFRR BBAMRE  BMEFHE
REBF A EWHHE  FHARNE
T NAEAXEIEZEER KA
BIIRBESIBEENIES  SEIRSH
HUEERENEREM NMBTFLTF
NS KoM EFERETH
BEBEHMHNR -
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During the year under review, the Group cooperated with an
e-commerce platform, Pinduoduo, and rolled out a dedicated herbal
essence ginger shampoo for promotion of the Bawang brand name
on this platform. Through this cross-industry cooperation, we
successfully rolled out dedicated bundled product series during the
festive times and seasons, which drew the attention of the consumers
and were well-received by them. In the second half of the year, we
rolled out amino acid shampoo product series to capture the market
share in the traditional channel.

During the year under review, the Group gave away some free
Bawang shampoo product testers through dispensing machines in
public areas. Advertisements of Bawang branded products were
showcased in lifts of buildings in Guangzhou, Shenzhen and other
first-tier cities as well as the cross-border coaches among
Guangdong, Hong Kong, and Macau.

Additionally, we successfully developed a sales channel for college
students. Leveraging on the “College Students Advertising Festival” (X
B4 £ EYITER) and cooperating with some colleges, we introduced
Bawang branded products to the campuses which publicized and
educated young people to understand the concept of hair-care by
using herbal shampoo products.

Through the “China International Comics Festival Expo” (F B8
EMEEE), the Group has engaged in intensive cooperation with
some major animation companies. A comic book known as “Herbal
Fairytale” (%:f5%74%) has been released and a revamped comic App
has been launched for promoting the Bawang brand in the form of
comics and animation, which enhanced and reinforced the
consumers’ understanding of the concept of hair-care through
traditional Chinese medicine shampoos and the different
functionalities of various Bawang branded products.

REOEFERN BMPEHZZEHTE
BF UAEREXEHFEELERE
KENEmMm UWHRZFaLEEHET
mig o BBBERAIE RMAEHEMEE
HEKDHELETREERERRY X
EBEENEIMNEE - R T +F - 3
HHRERKEKRINF R BERA
HEREMHMEA -

REBFERN NEEBBER TS
ERAHSHRE —L2BENHF I N)K
o WEBEREMN  RINEFE—REHAE
ERMEBRABERE T ETRS RN
KEBHRMNBEIMMAINES °

AN HAARIIRAERNELET IS - A A
[(REEBEEEME | BEH KBS -
HMEBImEEREE TRE EE
SHFEATRBBERNREKERE
Eme -

e TEEREENEES | A& H
MEXBBARETTREAFE (B
18 A f50) / N B 3% DA N 48 BRURR B )2 B App
BFe LR BBENFAETEHEIMN
e BmBRERERKNEEEIMEE
mEAEIhEE - BB THEE Y
e EEEE IR -
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To further motivate the Group’s distributors and sales team, incentive
leisure travel scheme for the participating distributors and internal
staff members was offered for free to those who completed the
predetermined sales target for a specified period. During the year
under review, eligible staff members and distributors who participated
in the scheme travelled to five selected destinations.

As at 31 December 2019, the Bawang brand distribution network
comprised approximately 810 distributors and six KA retailers,
covering 26 provinces and four municipalities in China. Furthermore,
the Bawang branded products were also sold in Hong Kong,
Thailand and Malaysia.

During the year under review, the Group continued to adopt the
marketing theme “Let’s chase for the wind rather than wait for the
wind” to promote new Royal Wind branded shampoo products
primarily for the online sales channel. As at 31 December 2019, the
Royal Wind brand distribution network comprised approximately 125
distributors and six KA retailers, covering 26 provinces and four
municipalities in China.

The Litao products mainly comprise shower gels and laundry
detergents, which target consumers living in the second-tier or third-
tier cities in China. The Group’s goal is to maintain the market
coverage in the traditional channel. As at 31 December 2019, the
Litao products distribution network comprised approximately 44
distributors, covering 26 provinces and four municipalities in China.

The Herborn Chinese herbal skin-care product series targets white-
collar ladies in the age range from 25 to 45 who have relatively high
net incomes and who are dedicated to pursue a healthy and natural
lifestyle. We sold the products through our online sales channel and
staff or group purchase.
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The Group has established 18 online retailing platforms for our
Bawang, Royal Wind and Herborn branded products. Of which, two
were established during the year.

For the year under review, we obtained and/or renewed and/or
possessed the certificates and/or recognitions as follows:

— 10 Bawang branded Chinese herbal shampoos and hair-care
series products have been recognised as “The 2019 New High-
Tech Products in Guangdong Province (EIR4& = 3 HiTE )"
by the Guangdong Provincial New Hi-tech Enterprise
Association (BRE = #FH Tt E ) in December 2019 for a
period of three years until the end of 2022;

— the permit for production of cosmetic products, which was
issued by Guangdong Provincial Food and Drug Administration,
remains valid until May 2021;

— our production process for hair-care and skin-care products
has been certified by SGS with a validity period until July 2022
as to meet the requirements of US FDA CFSAN by reference to
Cosmetic Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP) Guidelines
2008;

AEBEEBRNIBEAR LTEFaEY
EREEEHERT ERMAEER
BER HPMRXROBFERNREL -

REEFERN - HIVES N/ E/X
FAUTHEEM/HRE -

- RIZE-AE+-_A BEImET+
BHREHEFEERIEREERSE
BN ERERTERI2019F &
RESTRMESR] A A=F
EE—_ZT - —_FK:

— ERERDEREBEEERBEN
b BEEFITES  ARHEZ
—E-—FHA:

- KMEEZEEEMNEEREARAB
TSCSHBMFTM ESERR M
ZTEEBEFLEBERRTEE
%5 (GMP)2008 M R 75 » B Hi#E =
—E-—Ft R
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our production process for hair-care and skin-care products
has been certified by SGS with a validity period until July 2022
as to meet the requirements of 1ISO22716 by reference to
Cosmetic Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP) Guidelines
2007;

we were awarded the “T-Mall Golden Award 2019 (K& 2 59)
certificate by TMALL (X5#) recognising our outstanding logistics
services in March 2019;

Bawang (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd was awarded “Excellent
Cooperation Company” (74 {E& 1) and “Charity Award” (&
Az EE) by Guangzhou Dade Public Welfare (/N AEA %)
in July 2019;

our Bawang and Royal Wind brands were awarded “Guangdong
Daily Chemical — China Power (BERH{tL—F B /1=)" for the
most influential brand award by the Guangdong Daily Chemical
Chamber of Commerce (B3R & H{ELE ) in September 2019;

we were awarded the 4th China brand i berry award (7 B 52 h&i
£ %) of the “Most Favourable Consumer Brands of the Year” (5
E&XHEEEE H{Lmh#) by Blueberry Society (B&®) in
November 2019;

we were awarded the “8th Social Marketing Forum and Golden
Bee Integrated Marketing Golden Award” (58 )\ Bt &t & {458
BEE S EBRERS ZIHES ) by the Advertiser Forum (B& =
18) in November 2019;

we were awarded the “Most Favorable Consumers Brand of
2019 (R HEE S MIELE) in the China trendy industry by
Xinxi News ({Z B.fF3R) in December 2019; and

RMEEZEEEEMNEERRESR
B TSGSH BT H BEBRK 1
ZEMBIE REERIERE®D
ISO22716 : 2007 & B 1t #k @ R &F &£
ERBCMPRE  ERHEE=-F
——F+ A

N-_ZE—AE=A KRESHX
5 & 78 3 820194 [Z 9 R 75 4
R R AR

R-ZE-NFLtA BE(EMAE
RARWEMMABRERTIES

BEEMIZEO RS

RZZE-NFLA XEBEHETH
FTMERMERBOESERE A
tReRENIERBAE-—FBESN
EIRAFE I mEE:

RZT-NF+—A ZMESH
EsgRZnmENEdTEmEiE
BIFEEXHEEEERtmEL

R-ZF-NFE+—-A BMNES
EEEIWERENIEN\ELELE
HwEBESEREAZHES R

R-E—NhE+—-F BHESH
1= BB 3R 78 3 92019 4F & /P B A 1)
EX(EXEEBESHRRESE] &
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—  the Group won the honour as the “Top 10 China Daily Chemical
Brands (B R{bAdm+AmEE3E) in 2019”7 in the iiMedia
Ranking (M4 #5). The award was based on assessment of
the company’s strength index, media attention index, public
praise index, and analyst evaluation index, which was carried
out by iiMedia Daily Chemical Industry Research Centre (3% H
EmEITEH TP L.

Key Risks and Uncertainties

Apart from those stated in the Chairman’s Statement, Management
Discussion and Analysis and Outlook sections, the Company is
exposed to the following key risks and uncertainties which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

In recent years, it has been common for the Mainland
manufacturing enterprises to face continuously rising labour
costs and difficulties in employing skilled labour. Our Group’s
strategy in response is to reduce the production costs. From
the start of 2020, almost all business enterprises in the China
have been suffering from the unprecedented coronavirus
pandemic, and the Group’s operations were temporarily
disrupted in the first quarter with financial performance being
impacted to a certain degree. Additional prevention and control
measures by the government have been implemented to
contain the spread of coronavirus, which also impact the
Group’s operations. Whilst the Group will strictly follow all these
regulatory measures laid down by the government, the Group
had restarted its operations since 10 February 2020, and will
make every effort to recover from any adverse impacts on its
operations and economic impacts on itself and its customers.

- AEERBRNHESEEMI2019(H
BAE(ERmTKAMEE) ZER
EHNRAEREITERRR O
CEENES RERAEREF
POMEH DMMFEEHES
4 Z &t 4 dn W2 PR TT O &7 & FF A

TERBKFABREE

BRIE@mss BEEMRLEOTLE
FiRAFEEAIN - KR ARBE(R A K
PIY(BAEDIFE622F) AT W EME Y
MERERENMTHRARZAT -

BAEEC¥IFLEME L TK
RAE ERRBEAF T ARE-
NEEE ) E R 2 ARIKEER
K- EZZE_ZFVHAB 2FE
PEMEZITHMAMRE N TR
BARMT AEBEE—FTEEBHH
THERETE BBEEZINE
Z - AEMNERBENERE
EAHEE T IR TERS A E G B
e o AN 52 B — 5 M B A% 8 <F BT
EHMEBELEERE WAE-Z
“EF_A+HEIT BEXEEI
BB REEEBNEMAT A
FERHHEHBFNEFNKETE
FRE AR o
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Exposure to bad debts attributable to customers usually
intensifies following a weak economic performance. To minimize
credit risks, the management of the Group has appointed
dedicated staff members to handle procedures for determining
credit limits, credit approval and other monitoring procedures,
to ensure that follow-up actions with all receivables are taken in
a timely manner. In addition, the Group reviews the collectibility
of receivables at the end of a reporting period, to ensure that
sufficient impairment losses are recognised for in respect of
uncollectible debts. For the year ended 31 December 2019, no
bad debts were recognised by the Group.

In managing liquidity risks, the Group monitors and maintains
cash and cash equivalents at a level which is considered by the
management as sufficient, to satisfy the needs arising from the
Group’s operations and to mitigate the effect of fluctuations of
cash flow. The Group’s management will continue to closely
monitor the use of cash.

Sales to overseas countries denominated in foreign currencies
expose the Group to foreign exchange risks. The Group closely
manages and monitors foreign exchange risks to ensure that
appropriate measures are taken in a timely manner. The Group
will consider using hedging in respect of foreign currencies to
mitigate relevant risks as and when appropriate.

Environmental Protection

The Group is responsible for its impact to the environment arising
from its business operations. During the year under review, the Group
strictly complied with the local environmental regulations of the PRC.
The production of household and personal care products belongs to
the light industry, thus no pollutants are involved during the
manufacturing process and adverse impact to the surrounding
environment is minimal. The Group has been investing and
implementing various energy conservation projects in recent years, in
which overall power consumption has drastically reduced.
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Business Compliance

During the year under review, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group.

Relationship with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group adopts an employee-oriented approach, which ensures
that all staff members are reasonably remunerated. To retain a quality
workforce, we strive to regularly improve, review and update our
human resources policy and our compensation and benefits. We also
provide training opportunities to upgrade the skills of our staff
members. We also care for the occupational health and safety of our
workers.

The Group’s major customers are categorised into four channels,
namely traditional distributors, B2B corporate clients, key account
hypermarkets and supermarkets, and online sales (including online
official flagship stores and distributors). The credit terms granted to
major customers are 30 to 90 days, which are in line with those of
the credit terms granted to other customers.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. We have
put in place procedures for handling customer complaints to receive
and analyse the customers’ complaints and make recommendations
on remedial actions with a view to improving service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a
fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual basis.
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Financial Review

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue from operations
amounted to approximately RMB258.2 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 12.1% from approximately RMB293.9
million for 2018. The revenue through the online sales channel
decreased by approximately 4.7% as compared with 2018 and the
revenue through the conventional sales channel decreased by
approximately 21.1% as compared with 2018.

The Group’s core brand, Bawang, generated approximately
RMB241.5 million in revenue, which accounted for approximately
93.5% of the Group’s total revenue by product category in 2019, and
represented a decrease of approximately 11.0% as compared with
2018.

The branded Chinese herbal anti-dandruff hair-care series, Royal
Wind, generated approximately RMB7.0 million in revenue, which
accounted for approximately 2.7% of the Group’s total revenue by
product category in 2019, and represented a decrease of approximately
17.7% as compared with 2018.

The natural-based branded shampoo, shower gel and laundry
detergent products series, Litao, generated approximately RMB7.5
million in revenue, which accounted for approximately 2.9% of the
Group’s total revenue by product category in 2019, and represented
a decrease of approximately 16.7% as compared with 2018.

The branded Chinese herbal skin-care series, Herborn, generated
approximately RMB1.8 million in revenue, which accounted for
approximately 0.7% of the Group’s total revenue by product category
in 2019, and represented a decrease of approximately 57.1% as
compared with 2018.
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We sold our products through extensive distribution and retall
networks, via conventional and online sales channels. During the year

BA—RBBEZNDHANETERS
MEEHRMNER BE—_T—hF+

ended 31 December 2019, a summary of our sales revenue in @ — A=+ —H Gt B BB TR HPE
percentage through different networks and/or channels is as follows: 1 /s EE WS EEE S LA RO T -
Network/Channel Conventional Online Total
max RiE B4 S a5t
(%) (%) (%)
Distributor DA 33.7 23.4 57.1
Retailer TEH 7.1 35.8 42.9
Total & 40.8 59.2 100.0

In 2019, our products were also sold in Hong Kong, Thailand and
Malaysia. The sales to these overseas markets accounted for
approximately 1.2% of our total revenue in 2019.

Cost of sales in 2019 amounted to approximately RMB143.1 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 8.5% compared with
approximately RMB156.4 million in 2018. Such decrease was mainly
due to the decrease in materials consumed, packaging material
consumed and manufacturing expenses, which was partially offset by
an increase in the costs of direct labour.

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit decreased to
approximately RMB115.0 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 16.4% as compared with approximately RMB137.5
million for 2018. The gross profit margin decreased from
approximately 46.8% for 2018 to approximately 44.5% for 2019.
Such decrease was mainly attributable to a decrease of sales volume,
which led to an increase in production cost per unit due to
diseconomies of scale.

During the year under review, other income decreased to RMB3.0
million, representing a mild decrease of 3.2% as compared with
2018.
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Selling and distribution costs decreased to approximately RMB104.7
million for 2019, representing a decrease of approximately 7.7% as
compared to that for 2018. Such decrease was mainly due to
decrease in goods delivery expenses and the decrease in outsourced
labour costs, which resulted from the decrease in sales volume
through the conventional sales channel, but such decrease was
partially offset by the increases in salaries of sales staff and
advertising and branding expenses. As a percentage of revenue, our
selling and distribution costs increased from approximately 38.6% in
2018 to 40.5% in 2019.

Administrative expenses for 2019 amounted to approximately
RMB30.6 million, representing an increase of approximately 18.6%
as compared with approximately RMB25.8 million in 2018. Such
increase was mainly due to the increase in salaries and research and
development expenses, but such increase was partially offset by the
decrease in legal and professional fees and outsourced labour costs.
As a percentage of revenue, our administration expenses were
approximately 11.9% and 8.8% in 2019 and 2018, respectively.

For the year under review, the Group has made a reversal of
impairment losses of approximately RMB4.8 million in respect of
trade receivables, following the management’s assessment on credit
risk of our financial assets by adopting the expected credit loss (the
“ECL”) according to IFRS 9. Details are set out in note 21 on pages
145 to 148 to the consolidated financial statements relating to the
credit risk of financial assets.

The Group recorded an operating loss of approximately RMB12.9
million for 2019, as compared with an operating loss of approximately
RMBO0.8 million for 2018, which was mainly because of (1) the Group
has been facing intense competition in the sales of its products,
which caused a decrease in revenue; and (2) the Group increased its
expenditures in the ongoing development of its online sales channel,
which negatively affected the Group’s operating margin for the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, interest on bank borrowings
amounted to approximately RMBO0.6 million (2018: RMBO0.4 million).
Interest on lease liabilities amounted to approximately RMB1.7 million
(2018: nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s income tax
expense was approximately RMB6,000 (2018: nil). Based on facts
and circumstances and a detailed review of the Group’s tax position
carried out by an independent tax consultant, the over provision for
PRC Enterprise Income Tax in prior years of approximately RMB9.1
million (2018: nil) was written back and credited to profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

As a result of the combined effect of the above mentioned factors,
the Group recorded a loss of approximately RMB6.1 million for 2019,
as compared with a loss of approximately RMB1.2 million for 2018.

The actual net loss of approximately RMB6.1 million is lower than that
of the expected net loss in the region of approximately RMB10.0
million for 2019 as disclosed in the Supplemental Announcement.
The favorable variance was mainly attributable to a lower amount of
impairment loss being recorded for our financial assets following
management’s assessment on credit risk by adopting the ECL
according to IFRS 9.

As a result of the combined effect of the above factors, the Group
recorded a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB6.1 million for 2019, as compared with a loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately RMB1.2
million for 2018.
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Save for the matters relating to the outbreak of the disease caused
by the COVID-19 virus as described above and also in the
Company’s business update voluntary announcement dated 21
February 2020, which may adversely affect the financial results of the
Group for the six months ending 30 June 2020, the Directors are not
aware of any significant event requiring disclosure that has taken
place subsequent to 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
report.

Outlook

In late January 2020, the IMF revised China’s gross domestic product
(“GDP”) growth prediction for 2020 from 5.8% per cent in October
2019 to 6.0% after the phase one of the Economic and Trade
Agreement between China and the United States was signed in mid-
January 2020. The actual China’s year-on-year GDP growth reached
6.1% in 2019.

The IMF said that the economic growth projection for 2020, which
depends on avoiding further escalation in the US-China trade
tensions, averting a no-deal Brexit, and the economic ramifications of
social unrest and geopolitical tensions remaining contained.

Regarding the impact of the outbreak of the disease caused by the
COVID-19 virus on the economic activities and growth, the IMF said
in late January 2020 that it was “too early” to assess the full impact of
the epidemic but acknowledged that it had already affected sectors
such as tourism and transportation. The IMF went on to indicate that
the epidemic could damage, not limited to China, the global
economic growth in 2020, but a sharp and rapid economic rebound
could follow in 2021, if the disease is “contained rapidly, in what is
known as the V-shaped impact.”

In the midst of novel coronavirus outbreak in mid-February 2020, a
poll of 40 economists, which was commissioned by Reuters,
predicted China’s annual economic growth in the first quarter of 2020
to slump to 4.5% from 6.0% in the previous quarter. That drop was
expected to drag down the full-year growth rate in 2020 to 5.5%
from 6.1% in 2019, its weakest since at least 1990 when comparable
records began. However, economists were optimistic the economy
would bounce back as soon as the second quarter, with growth then
forecast to recover to a median 5.7%, according to the poll.
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In early March 2020, the IMF slashed its 2020 economic growth
outlook for China to below 5.6 per cent because of the “sheer
geographic spread” of the coronavirus epidemic globally. With the
ever-increasing number of confirmed novel coronavirus cases and
casualties from mid-March 2020, the economic growth prospect of
2020 is expected to be bleak, which the growth rate may fall to 1.2%
this year.

Owing to the uncertainties as mentioned in the above paragraphs,
the Directors tend not to be optimistic about the Chinese economy in
2020. Having said that, we believe that people will pay more attention
to their health care after this epidemic. Hence, business opportunities
may be available to the Group. We are confident about the Group’s
development in the long run.

The corporate theme for 2020 is “Without fear of difficulty, re-launch
again”.

For Bawang branded products, the Group will make use of: (1) the
popularity of Internet celebrities to increase the exposure of the brand
and to cooperate with the Internet celebrities for driving up the sales
revenue; (2) the impact arising from the “College Students Advertising
Festival” (RKZ4 4 #4755 in spring to continue to explore and
expand the market shares in the young generation segment, to
deepen the recognition and association of the post-95 and the post-
00 generations with anti-hair fall concept with emphasis on the core
philosophy of Bawang brand in anti-hair fall and hair-care and
receptive attitude towards the rejuvenated Bawang brand so as to
achieve the purposes of advertising and promoting the brand; (3) the
publicity and promotion of Bawang branded products through new
media, internal media and word-of-mouth of key opinion leaders; and
(4) further focus of promotion in Bawang anti-hair fall, natural herbal
and amino acid as well as Bawang antiseptic product series to
enhance the Group’s sales revenue.

For Royal Wind branded product series, the Group will continue to
make good efforts to promote its brand image to cater for the trendy
lifestyle of young customers. We mainly promote the fragrance
products series of this brand in 2020, and will sell our branded
products through traditional sales channels, the exclusive zones
inside the contracted supermarkets and the online flagship stores.

For Litao branded product series, we mainly promote our antiseptic
laundry detergents and shower gel in order to execute the plan to
satisfy the market needs in the midst of the epidemic and to enhance
the Group’s revenue.
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For conventional channels, the Group will continue to deepen
cooperation and interaction with distributors by: (1) regularly updating
our stimulating sales policies and reinforcement of supports to key
customers for the purpose of stabilizing the sales from the distributor
channel; (2) launching of antiseptic products for developing
unexplored market in the traditional channel; (3) providing substantial
supports to exclusive zone channel through heavy promotion of anti-
hair fall, amino acid and antiseptic new product series so as to
enhance the sales revenue through this channel; and (4) endeavoring
to develop new sales channel, to obtain more OEM orders and to
encourage staff members to seek to expand group sales customers.

As to the online sales channel, the Group hopes to achieve stable
sales growth in the future. For our own online flagship stores, the
Group will continue to create signature anti-hair fall and hair-care
product series. In its marketing and promotion plans, the Group will
broadcast commercial videos featuring our product range in different
social media such as Tik Tok, Kwai and Taobao live. For the online
distributors, the Group will select some quality and potential online
platforms and distributors and to provide them with higher sales and
marketing expenses as so to enhance sales revenue and rate of
return.

Apart from this, the Group intends to further tap into the potential of
social media e-commerce. The Group will continue to develop the
social media platforms such as WeChat Small App to enhance sales
revenue. The Group will make use of potential user-group networks
and user-to-user connections in other platforms for increase of sales
revenue.

For production management, we strive to keep our customers
satisfied with the quality of our products. While we uphold quality of
products, we will at the same time continue to reduce spoilage, lower
the production costs, increase the turnover of production materials
and minimize the inventory level. We will continue to make good use
of our management skills, advanced production equipment and spare
production facilities and capacities for expanding an original
equipment manufacturer (OEM) business. Additionally, having
considered the production requirements, we will seek to enhance the
utilization rate of the production floor area and optimize the storage
space. We believe that through the integration of production
resources to achieve greater value enhancement, we can create
more revenue for our shareholders.
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As part of the business expansion plan, the Group will continue to
explore the possibility of engaging with potential distributors for
launching our branded products to other countries. The Group is
open to explore further business opportunities with potential overseas
distributors.

As of the date of this report, the Group does not have any
outstanding acquisition opportunity on hand, nor is actively exploring
business opportunities that may involve potential acquisition.
However, the Group is open to potential investment opportunities.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The Group adopts conservative financial management policies and
maintains a good and solid financial position. A summary of liquidity
and financial resources is set out below:
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Total loans ff KB ER 9.7 12.6
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The gearing ratio’ BEAEX 3.3% 4.3%
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Material Acquisition and Disposal

The Group did not engage in any material acquisition or disposal of
any of its subsidiaries or associates during the year under review.
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Exposure To Fluctuations in Exchange Rates
and Hedging

The operations of the Group are mainly carried out in Mainland China,
with most transactions being settled in Renminbi. The reporting
currency of the Group is Renminbi. During the year under review, the
Group had exported its goods to Hong Kong and certain overseas
countries. The transactions were settled in either Hong Kong Dollars
or United States Dollars. The Group’s cash and bank deposits are
mostly denominated in Renminbi. The Company will pay dividends in
Hong Kong Dollars if dividends are declared. In addition, the Group
paid certain advertising fees in United States Dollars or Hong Kong
Dollars. The Directors are of the view that the Group conducts its
business transactions principally in Renminbi and thus the exchange
risk at the Group’s operational level is not significant. As at 31
December 2019, the Group had not issued any material financial
instruments or entered into any material contracts for foreign currency
hedging purposes. However, the Directors will continue to monitor
the foreign exchange exposure and are prepared to take prudent
measures such as hedging when required.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2019.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2019, the capital commitments of the Group
amounted to approximately RMBO0.3 million.

Charge of Assets

As at 31 December 2019, buildings with carrying values of
approximately RMB3.2 million (2018: RMB3.4 million) were pledged
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. During the year
under review, the Group obtained the banking facilities of
approximately RMB500 million. As at 31 December 2019, banking
facilities of approximately RMB500 million were unutilised and
available for the Group’s future financing.
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Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to applicable statutory provisions of the Cayman Islands,
the Company had no reserves available for distribution to the
shareholders as at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

Inventories

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had inventories of approximately
RMB29.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately 25.8%
compared with approximately RMB39.6 million for 2018. Such
decrease was primarily due to the decrease of sales return from KA
channel and the decrease of inventories from Herborn and Little King
Products.

The Group adopts a prudent approach in valuing its inventory. The
Group continuously monitors the inventory levels of its different raw
materials, packaging materials and finished goods, and based on
feedback from the sales force on the various product lines and sales
figures, the management regularly identifies the inventory levels of
individual inventory items to determine whether there is any slow
moving or obsolete items or finished goods. On this basis, the
management will devise actions to be taken in relation to such
inventory prior to their obsolescence, and/or whether provision
should be made.

Trade Receivables

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had trade receivables of
approximately RMB21.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 30.0% compared with approximately RMB30.7 million
for 2018. Such decrease was primarily due to (1) the decrease in the
overall sales of online and conventional channels; and (2) the Group
adopts stricter credit policies.

Some of the Group’s sales are made on credit, trade receivables are
resulted when the goods and titles have been delivered and passed,
respectively. The management regularly reviews the credit quality of
the Group’s customers and their partners to evaluate whether
provision should be made.
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Trade and Other Payables

As at 31 December 2019, the trade and other payables of the Group
was approximately RMB75.7 million (2018: RMB81.4 million). The
decrease was primarily due to the decrease of the promotion fee
payables and non-income tax payables, but such decrease was
partially offset by the increase of trade payables. For the two years
ended 31 December 2019, trade and other payables did not include
any balances due to related parties.

Human Resources

To provide incentive to the employees of the Group, the Group is
committed to staff training and development under any economic
circumstances. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
employees. The Group will continue to invest in our human capital so
as to retain a quality workforce to achieve our organisational goal.

In 2019, the Group organised various in-house training classes to
strengthen the soft skills of our staff members such as time
management, stress management, and leadership development.
Apart from these in-house courses, the Group also required our
department managers to attend external courses on reward and
compensation, and motivation, we required our senior sales and
marketing staff to attend brand positioning strategy course, and we
required our finance and accounting staff members to attend
seminars about the latest legislative/regulatory compliance,
accounting standards, taxation practices and budgetary control.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed approximately 594
employees (31 December 2018: 626), consisting of full-time
employees and contract personnel in the PRC and Hong Kong. The
total personnel expenses, comprising wages, salaries and benefits,
amounted to RMB54.7 million for 2019 (31 December 2018:
RMB47.7 million).
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of the total headcount of
our employees and contract personnel as at 31 December 2019 and
2018:

TRIIWR_E—NF+_A=+—H
FZE-—NF+_A=+—BHMHE
BEERAGXIEERAHM:

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

+t=A=+-8B +=ZA=+—H

Full-time employees *RES 197 191
Contract personnel AHEE

— Sales persons —{EiH B 95 108

— Others — Hi 302 327

Total employees HWEBAHY 594 626

The employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary review are
based on individual job responsibilities, work performances,
professional experiences and the prevailing industry practices.

Our employees in the PRC and Hong Kong join social insurance
contribution plans and the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme,
respectively. Other benefits include performance-based incentive
bonus scheme and share options granted or to be granted under the
share option schemes.

The Directors believe that the Group’s human resources policies play
a crucial part in the further development of the Group. Promising
career prospects, good staff remuneration and benefits as well as
pleasant working environment are essential factors for maintenance
of a stable workforce for the Group.
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The Corporate Governance Code and the
Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to enhancing the corporate governance
of the Group, and the Board reviews and updates all such necessary
measures in order to promote good corporate governance.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with the
applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiry with the Directors, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year under review.

Board of Directors

As at 31 December 2019, the Board comprised six members,
including the Chairman, Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the Chief Executive
Officer, Mr. CHEN Zheng He (the “CEQ”), the Chief Financial Officer
and three independent non-executive Directors. Biographical details
of the Directors are set out in the section headed Directors and
Senior Management on pages 60 to 64 of this annual report.

The Board is responsible for approving and monitoring the Group’s
strategies and policies, approving annual budgets and business
plans, evaluating the performance of the Group and supervising the
work of management. The management is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group under the leadership of the CEO.
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The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
executive Directors and senior management of the Company. These
responsibilities include implementing decisions of the Board and
directing and co-ordinating day-to-day operation and management of
the Group. The Board reviews these arrangements periodically to
ensure such arrangements remain appropriate to the Group’s needs.

To satisfy the independence requirement of the independent non-
executive Directors, the Board must determine that the independent
non-executive Directors do not have any direct or indirect material
relationship with the Group. The Board follows the requirements set
out in the Listing Rules to determine the independence of Directors.
Independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of 3
years.

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separated in order to
reinforce their independence and accountability. Except that the
CEO, Mr. CHEN Zheng He, is the son of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the
Directors are not otherwise related to each other.

The Board held eight meetings in 2019. Each of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan,
Mr. CHEN Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. WANG Qi attended all meetings.

The Company has adopted the nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) and the board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”) as
required by the Corporate Governance Code and the Listing Rules,
respectively, and has taken into account the diversity of the Board
when selecting the candidates from a number of perspectives as
stated in the Diversity Policy as published on the Company’s
webpage.

Nomination Policy

Either the secretary or the chairman of the Nomination Committee
shall call a meeting of the Nomination Committee, and may invite
nominations of candidates from the Board members, if any, for the
Nomination Committee to consider prior to its meeting. The
Nomination Committee may also nominate candidate(s) who are not
nominated by any member of the Board. For filling a casual vacancy,
the Nomination Committee shall make recommendation(s) for the
consideration and approval of the Board. For proposing candidate(s)
to stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee
shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation to the shareholders of the Company for approval.
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In order to provide information on the candidate(s) nominated by the
Board for election at a shareholders’ general meeting, and to invite
nominations from the shareholders, a circular will be sent to the
shareholders in accordance with the requirements under the Listing
Rules. The relevant circular will at a minimum set out such information
about each proposed candidate, as required under the applicable
laws, rules and regulations, the Company’s constitutional documents
and the Listing Rules. A shareholder may serve a notice to the
Company Secretary within the lodgment period of its intention to
propose a resolution to elect a certain person as a director without
the Board’s recommendation or the Nomination Committee’s
nomination. The particulars of the proposed candidates will be sent
to all shareholders for information by a supplementary circular.

In assessing the suitability of a potential candidate, the Nomination
Committee would consider factors, including but not limited to,
candidate’s personal integrity and character, accomplishment and
experience that are relevant to the Group’s business, diversity of the
Board in accordance with the Diversity Policy.

Diversity Policy

In achieving diversity of the Board, a number of aspects of each
director candidate will be considered, including but not limited to
gender, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of services. All Board
appointment will be based on meritocracy, and the candidates will be
considered based on the objective criteria as set out in this policy
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Diversity Policy and has followed the Nomination Policy and the
Diversity Policy in the nomination of the new Director(s), including the
appointment of new independent non-executive Director(s).

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which, the decision to declare a dividend or a distribution
will be at the discretion of the Board. The Company intends to
declare dividends to shareholders semi-annually in an aggregate
amount per year not exceeding 30% of the anticipated consolidated
net annual profits and may declare special dividends from time to
time in addition to interim or final dividends. In deciding whether to
propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board shall take into account (including but not limited to) the
Group’s operations and earnings, development needs, cash flow,
financial condition, capital and other reserve requirements and
surplus, contractual and financial restrictions and any other conditions
or factors which the Board considers relevant and having regard to
the directors’ fiduciary duties. While sharing the profit with
shareholders, the Company shall also maintain sufficient reserves to
ensure the implementation of the Group’s strategy for development.
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The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
laws of Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules, the laws of Hong Kong,
the memorandum and articles of association of the Company and
those laws, regulations and memorandum and articles of association
to which the subsidiaries of the Group are subject.

The Divided Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time and
there can be no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or
declared in any specific periods.

The Board is not aware of any shareholders who have waived or
agreed to waive any dividends.

Update on Directors’ Information

Mr CHEUNG Kin Wing, an independent non-executive Director,
joined Self Strengthening Service Centre Limited (2 5& k& /OB R
/A \]), which is a company limited by guarantee and an approved
charitable organization, as a director on a voluntary basis with effect
from 30 September 2019.

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, an independent non-executive Director, ceased
to be an independent non-executive director of Yangtze Optical Fibre
and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company (stock code: 6869.HK) from
January 2020.

Remuneration of Directors and Chief Executive

Details of the remuneration of each Director and the Chief Executive
for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements. Other than the Directors and the
Chief Executive, there is no other member of senior management.

Directors’ Training

Under Code Provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Internally facilitated briefings for directors are arranged and
reading materials on relevant topics are issued to Directors where
appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.
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As of 31 December 2019, all Directors (being Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. WANG Qi) received regular updates on
the Group’s business, operations, risk management and corporate
governance matters, and participated in the directors’ training offered
by professional bodies and/or arranged by the Company. Materials
on new or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to the
Group were provided to the Directors. Directors are requested to
provide their records of training they received to the Company
Secretary for record and annual review by Nomination Committee.
During the year under review, the Directors received an aggregate of
approximately 223 hours of training in various fields with a breakdown
as follows:

2019 Directors’ Training by Topic
—E-hAFEEEIEE
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Hong Kong Financial Economy/ Business
Legislative/ Director’s Reporting/ Capital Management/
Average per person: Regulatory Duties/ESG Taxation/Risk Market Investor
approximately 37 hours Compliance Practices Management Updates Relationship Others'
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Mr. CHEN Zheng He BRIEBS ST 4 v v v v v v
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Dr. NGAI Wai Fung BEIEE L+ v v v v v v
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing ~ SRE 48 % 4 v v v
Dr. WANG Qi EHEL v v v Y

1. Include topics such as technology transfer and industry association internal training,
etc.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises our executive Director, Mr.
CHEN Zheng He, and our two INEDs, Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr.
NGAI Wai Fung. Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing is the chairperson of the
Remuneration Committee. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendation to the Board on the overall
remuneration policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of our Group, review performance based remuneration
and ensures that none of our Directors determine their own
remuneration. If necessary, the Remuneration Committee will have
access to independent advice.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings in 2019. Each of
Mr. CHEN Zheng He, Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. NGAI Wai Fung
attended the said meeting.

During the meeting, the Remuneration Committee discussed the
remuneration structure of the Directors.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises our executive Director, Mr.
CHEN Qiyuan, and our two independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. NGAI Wai Fung. Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is the
chairperson of the Nomination Committee. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and to make recommendations to the
Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies on the Board and the re-
election of Directors.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings in 2019. During the
meetings, the committee members reviewed the senior management
structure of the Group and the re-election of Directors. All committee
members attended the said meetings.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

As at 31 December 2019, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
two of whom possess the appropriate business and financial
experience and skills to understand the accounts of the Group. The
Audit and Risk Management Committee is chaired by Dr. NGAI Wai
Fung and the other members are Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr.
WANG Q.
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The written terms of reference which describes the authority and
duties of the Audit and Risk Management Committee was prepared
and adopted in accordance with the Listing Rules. The Audit and
Risk Management Committee is required, amongst other things, to
oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s interim and annual results, to review the scope, extent and
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, to review accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group, to engage independent legal or other advisers as it determines
necessary and to perform investigations.

During the year, the Audit and Risk Management Committee has
performed the following:

— met with the external auditor to discuss the general scope and
findings of their annual audit and interim review work;

— reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval of the
external auditor’s remuneration;

— made recommendations to the Board on the reappointment of
the external auditor;

— reviewed the external auditor’'s independence, objectivity and
the effectiveness of the auditing process;

— reviewed the annual and interim reports and annual and interim
results announcements of the Company;

— reviewed the effectiveness and the implementation of the
Group’s internal audit and risk management function;

— discussed auditing, internal control, risk management and
financial reporting matters of the Company before
recommending them to the Board for approval; and

— reviewed the connected transactions entered into by the Group.
The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed the annual

report with the management and the external auditors and
recommended its adoption by the Board.
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In 2019, all issues raised by the external auditor and the Audit and
Risk Management Committee have been addressed by the senior
management of the Company. The work and findings of the Audit
and Risk Management Committee have been reported to the Board.
During the audit for the financial year ended 31 December 2019, one
issue relating to the use of treasury funds by the management of the
Company had been noted by the external auditor and reported to the
Audit and Risk Management Committee, which was subsequently
reported to the Board, and addressed by way of an announcement
dated 5 April 2020 by the Company and also enhanced by adopting
internal control policies to prevent future occurrence. Save for the
foregoing, during the year, no issues were brought to the attention of
the senior management of the Company and the Board of sufficient
significance for disclosure in this annual report.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee held three meetings in
2019. Each of Dr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr.
WANG Qi had attended all three meetings.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is responsible for
performing the functions set out in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code.

During the year under review, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee met three times to review the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and the compliance of the Company with the
Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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Directors’ responsibilities for financial statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company, and for ensuring that the
financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards.

A statement from the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019, is set out on pages 70 to 72 of the annual
report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

Internal control and risk management

The Board is responsible for making appropriate assertions on the
adequacy and the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems and procedures and to resolve material internal
control defects. The Board together with the senior management of
the Group are jointly responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control of the Group so as to ensure the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations of the Group in achieving
the established corporate objectives, safeguarding assets of the
Group, rendering reliable financial reporting and complying with the
applicable laws and regulations.

During the year under review, the management of the Group, through
its daily management activities, gathers information on the Group’s
business, receives reports from the internal control function of the
Group, and analyses feedback from frontline and back office staff to
identify risks in the Group’s business, operation, financial conditions
and future expansion plans. Significant risks that are identified are
presented to the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the
Board on an ongoing basis.
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The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board is
responsible for reviewing reports and proposals submitted. The Audit
and Risk Management Committee will consider such risks and
recommend to the Board measures that should to be taken to
address them. Where appropriate, management of the Group will
assist the Audit and Risk Management Committee in submitting
proposals to the Board to address risks faced by the Group.

Based on the risks identified by the Group’s management and the
Group’s internal control function, the Audit and Risk Management
Committee will also regularly review and report to the Board as to
whether the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are effective, whether there are adequate resources (including
budgetary support for the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, staff with adequate qualification and
experience) for the implementation of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, and whether measures are in place to
ensure that the staff are suitably trained for this purpose. The
Directors will then collectively decide on what actions should be
taken.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group covering all material controls such as financial, operational
and compliance controls, and save as mentioned above, the Board
considers that these systems and controls are well established to suit
the Group’s needs and are effective and adequate.

The Directors recognise that the Group’s risk management and
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve the Group’s business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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Handling and disclosure of inside information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information (as defined under the Listing
Rules), the Company is fully aware of its obligations under Chapter 13
of the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The
Board reviews from time to time its internal guidelines on inside
information with reference to its own and industry circumstances and
also makes reference the “Guide on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission in considering its
obligations to make a disclosure. The Company’s policy strictly
prohibits unauthorised use or dissemination of confidential or inside
information and has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, including
the provision of an email address for external enquiries. The Company
Secretary also regularly sends out reminders to the directors, senior
management and employees reminding them of their obligations with
respect to inside information under the relevant statutory provisions
and Listing Rules.

All media communication activities are restricted to persons
appointed by the Board for the role in order to protect the interests of
the Company and keep inside information strictly confidential prior to
its disclosure.
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Investor Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders and investors: (i) dispatching printed copies of corporate
communication documents to shareholders; (i) the annual general
meeting provides a forum for shareholders to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board; (i) latest and key information of the
Group is available on the website of the Company; (iv) press
conference and briefing meetings with investors, shareholders and
analysts may be set up from time to time to provide updated
information about the Group, and; (v) the Company’s registrars serve
the shareholders in respect of all share registration matters. The
Board welcomes views of shareholders and encourages them to
attend general meetings to raise any concerns they might have with
the Board or the management directly. The Chairman of the Board as
well as the Chairmen and/or other members of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee and the Remuneration Committee will
normally attend the annual general meetings and other shareholders’
meetings of the Company to answer questions raised.

The Company convened one shareholders’ general meeting in 2019,
being the Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”) for the year 2018. The
AGM held on 31 May 2019 reviewed and approved a number of
resolutions such as the financial statements for the year 2018, Report
of Directors and appointment and remuneration of auditors of the
Company. All the Directors, namely Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, Mr. CHEN
Zheng He, Mr. WONG Sin Yung, Dr. NGAI Wai Fung and Mr.
CHEUNG Kin Wing and Dr. WANG Qi have attended the AGM of the
Company.

Company Secretary

The company secretary is Mr. WONG Sin Yung, an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
WONG is also our executive Director and Chief Financial Officer. He
assists the Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that the policy and procedures of the Board are followed.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. WONG has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”),
shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings may
request the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting
by sending a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for putting
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board.

Contact details are as follows:
Address: Suite B, 16/F Ritz Plaza,

122 Austin Road,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(For the attention of Mr. WONG Sin Yung,
Company Secretary)

Fax: +852 3114 8819
Email: IR@1338.hk

Constitutional Documents

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles. An up-to-date Articles is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Shareholders
may refer to the Articles for further details of their rights.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The remuneration paid/(payable) to the Company’s independent
external auditor, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, for the year ended
31 December 2019 in relation to audit services and non-audit
services (including the review of the Company’s interim results
announcement and interim report for the year 2019) are
approximately RMB1,100,000 and RMB286,000 respectively.

IR RE R

READDAHER (ARER))  H4
TOR+H2—ARRAMAREAGR
EROMRRANRETERARF B
MREEAAG FEAAEEERL
ARBEHEEESR -

g RN CIRIN/N EmMEBEHAREZA
ﬁé%éf’ﬁﬁ&ﬂﬁﬂ
BAREEIBA T ¢
ok BEBENERLHE
7] &= ) 3B 1225%
BH T O16EBE
(W ABRRME
BEERLE)
B8 +852 3114 8819
BEF M IR@1338.hk
HBEREXH

EOEFEARN AL EHEEBE

BIFLENES - HEBERENHKHRA
AHEARB @R ZABEER- R

RN S A IR ARG A B AR
SRR

1 B B 57 EA

BEE_FT-NAF+-_A=t+—HL#F
B ARBERM/(EMA)INEF L ZEIE
R*%D(%%)@%Eﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ’&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
AZBIRE MFRBRG (BREEH AR
AZE-NAFEFHXERAE LT HE
=) R E B D B4 s A K% 1,100,000 7T
A R #286,0007T ©



42

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2019

Report of the Directors

EEEBRS

The Directors submit this Report of Directors together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group are the designing, manufacturing,
trading and distribution of Chinese herbal products, including
shampoo products, hair-care products, skin-care products, and
household cleaning products. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 170 to 171 of this
annual report.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group, together with a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company,
particulars of important events affecting the Group that had occurred
since the end of the financial year 2019, as well as indication of likely
future developments in the business of the Group are set out in the
sections “Business Review” on pages 9 to 14, “Key Risks and
Uncertainties facing the Company” on pages 14 to 15, “Environmental
Protection” on page 15, “Business compliance” on page 16,
“Relationship with Employees, Customers and Suppliers” on page
16, and “Outlook” on pages 21 to 24 of this report respectively. An
analysis using financial key performance indicators is set out in the
sections “Revenue and Segment Information” on pages 127 to 130
and “Five Year Financial Summary” on page 172 in this report.

Dividends

Following a review of the operating results of the Group, the Board
does not recommend the payment of any final dividends in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 73 of
this annual report.
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Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the financial year 2019 are set out on pages 76 and
161 of this annual report respectively.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2019, sales made to the
Group’s five largest customers and the largest customer accounted
for approximately 23.0% and 11.7%, respectively of the total sales of
the Group. The Group purchased approximately 37.2% and 16.7%,
respectively of its goods and services purchased from its five largest
suppliers and the largest supplier.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 172 of this annual
report.

Bank Borrowing

Please refer to note 26 of the audited consolidated financial
statements for details of bank borrowing of the Group.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Share Capital and Share Options

Details of the movements in the share capital of and the share
options granted by the Company are set forth in notes 28 and 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Changes in Equity

Please refer to the consolidated statement of changes in equity as
contained in the audited consolidated financial statements of the year
(page 76 of this annual report).

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

Principal Subsidiaries

Please refer to note 37 of the audited consolidated financial
statements for details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2019.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
under review.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the Share Option Scheme and Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme described below, the Group has not entered into any equity-
linked agreements during the year.

Tax Relief and Exemption

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available

to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable
date prior to issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float with at least 25% of the Shares held by the
public as required under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2019 and up to the date of this annual report.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of assets of our Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur about the execution of
duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. Such permitted
indemnity provision is currently in force and was in force throughout
the financial year. For the year under review and as at the date of this
report, the Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against the directors of the Company.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors
The Directors during the year were:

Executive Directors

CHEN Qiyuan (Chairman)
CHEN Zheng He (Chief Executive Officer)
WONG Sin Yung cra

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung php, cPA, FCCA, FCIS, FCS (P.E.), MCIArb
CHEUNG Kin Wing rca, cra
Dr. WANG Qi
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Directors’ Biographies and re-election of Directors

Details of the Directors’ (for the year ended 31 December 2019)
biographies have been set out on pages 60 to 64 of the annual
report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of our executive Directors (other than Mr. CHEN Zheng He) has
entered into a director’s service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years from 4 July 2015. Mr. CHEN Zheng He has
entered into a director’s service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years from 20 October 2014. All these service
agreements are automatically renewable upon expiration, unless
terminated by not less than six months’ written notice served by
either party to the service agreement on the other or in accordance
with the provisions set out in the relevant service agreement.

For the INEDs, Dr. Ngai Wai Fung has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years from 4 July
2018. Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years from 13 November 2017.
Dr. WANG Qi has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years from 17 April 2018.

None of the Directors of the Company has entered into any service
contract with the Company which cannot be terminated by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Emoluments

The emoluments for the Directors are determined with reference to
salaries paid by comparable companies, experience, responsibilities
and performance of the Group. The Directors may be benefited from
fees, salaries, housing allowances, other allowances, benefits in kind
or bonuses in accordance with their respective service contracts.
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Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations

As of 31 December 2019, the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO”)), which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
to be and were entered into the register that was required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code:
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short

EEREETHRARARFLFRMG -

positions in shares, underlying shares and HHBAKRGKCREEEZSEDREEHESR R
debentures of the Company =
Number of
ordinary  Approximate
shares/ percentage of
underlying issued share
ordinary capital of the
shares of the Company
Company held )i NG|
Name of director/ BEAT 28T
chief executive Long/short position in VEBERR RAFZ
EE/BRETHRAER ordinary shares Nature of interest HEESER EZEIL
=x EERPZEF/IXR @Mt E R4 & B (W)
CHEN Qiyuan (Note 1) Long Interest in controlled 1,900,840,000 60.12%
corporation
PR BUR (BT 3E1) A P 128 A B
CHEN Zheng He (Note 2) Long Interest in controlled 1,900,840,000 60.12%
corporation
PR IE 85 (Ff5E2) HE P12 )% B #E
WONG Sin Yung Long Beneficial owner 2,100,000 0.07%
BHER e EmEB A
Notes: B 5E -

1.

CHEN Qiyuan was deemed to be interested in the 1,900,840,000 shares of the
Company held by Fortune Station Ltd. (“Fortune Station”) by virtue of CHEN Qiyuan
holding 50.43% of the issued share capital of Fortune Station. The remaining 49.57%
of the issued share capital of Fortune Station was held by Heroic Hour Limited (“Heroic
Hour”). Heroic Hour’s entire issued share capital is held by CHEN Zheng He as trustee
for himself and on behalf of his six brothers and sisters. The beneficial interests of
CHEN Qiyuan’s six children under the age of 18, namely CHEN Cynthia Yuping, CHEN
Li Zi, CHEN Zheng Sheng, CHEN Zheng Yan, CHEN Ya Shan and CHEN Bo Ling in
Heroic Hour, representing 78.00% of the issued share capital of Heroic Hour, were
also attributable to CHEN Qiyuan.

CHEN Zheng He was deemed to be interested in the shares of Fortune Station held by
Heroic Hour by virtue of him holding the entire issued share capital of Heroic Hour (as
trustee for himself and his six brothers and sisters). Therefore CHEN Zheng He was
deemed to be interested in the 1,900,840,000 shares of the Company held by Fortune
Station.

B FE R B #5 /8 Fortune Station 2 50.43% 2 B %
71 R% 15 BR BUIR % 48 /& ¥ 7 Fortune Station Ltd.
[Fortune Station | £7 % /& #91,900,840,000 % A &)
% 19 #9 #E 25 © Fortune Station &) H $249.57% & %%
77 B% 7ZX B Heroic Hour Limited ([ Heroic Hour |)
B MREBEASITARBRESNUBHEEHE
Heroic Hour ) 2 Jf 2 2 17 & 2N R BUR 188 5%
AT E) S F & - BDBR£E4F + CHEN Li Zi - CHEN
Zheng Sheng * [ IE 3 * [R # & K Chen Bo Ling T
255 A #978.00% Heroic Hour 2 % 17 B 8 75 47 47
BEBRBRER -

BEREIBEAITARBRAENGCRHKFES
Heroic Hour ) 2 &0 2 % 77 A% 78 1 # 18 /& 5 Heroic
Hour £ Fortune Station#) # 2= # # & # = ©
It BR IE #8 #% 18 A& % 7 Fortune Station FT 3% & 9
1,900,840,000 fi% 22 @] A& 1) #) 4 2 ©
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of associated corporations

ESEREETHRA R B EER
fo-HHRKMRREEBEPZIE R %
=

Approximate

Number of percentage of
ordinary interest in
Name of director/ Name of shares held associated
chief executive associated Long/short BEH corporation
EZ/RETHRAE corporation Nature of interest position ZER REBZEY
= HBLERE ERtE HIXR BROBE ZEZEIL
CHEN Qiyuan (Note 1) Fortune Station Beneficial owner Long 20,000 50.43%
PR B (T3 1) ExnEAA HE
Interest of children under 15,330 38.66%
the age of 18 Long
RW1BE TR 2 HE
Other Long 4,327 10.91%
Hh HE
CHEN Zheng He (Note 2) Fortune Station Interest in controlled corporation  Long 19,657 49.57%
PRIEES (M sE2) B il % Bl i 2 HE
Notes: M‘TE}_ .
1. CHEN Qiyuan was the beneficial owner of approximately 50.43% of the issued share 1. P BR A& Fortune Station 2 % 17 I% 2 89 £950.43% &

capital of Fortune Station. The beneficial interests of CHEN Qiyuan’s six children under
the age of 18 in Heroic Hour, representing 78.00% of the issued share capital of
Heroic Hour, were also attributable to CHEN Qiyuan. Heroic Hour held approximately
49.57% of the issued share capital of Fortune Station.

2. CHEN Zheng He was deemed to be interested in the interests of Fortune Station held
by Heroic Hour by virtue of him holding the entire issued share capital of Heroic Hour (as
trustee for himself and his six brothers and sisters).

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, so far as
known to any Director or chief executive of the Company, neither the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
to be and were entered into in the register that was required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

wHAA - ARBURISARNA T AL FXME
%5 45 A #978.00% Heroic Hour & 2 17 B AN 71 148, &
57 B A BREXR © Heroic Hour# 7 Fortune Station & 2
1T A #9£949.57% ©

2. BHBRIBEAZTARBRAENGCRHKES
Heroic Hour 2 & &f 2 % 17 i% 7 1 4 4% & 7 Heroic
Hour #E Fortune Station #9 4 % 7 % 4 25 ©
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders of the Company

As of 31 December 2019, so far as known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, shareholders (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register that was required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the

SFO were as follows:

N

BARQ
H-RZE
(BRARBESTXZSITHRAEBIN R
MAEERO T HEEREES BB K
1§IJ%3361|7R%E BELRSE

i}

NEIEFEBRRNERR

AENEEIZESTHRARMR

T-NEF+-_A=1+—HB KR

NS ARNT :

Number of ordinary

FEMELMH

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

shares of the capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interest Company held Company
RAade
BITRAF 2
BENAF EEEIHL
RERERE ERME EERRAHE (M &)
Fortune Station Beneficial owner 1,900,840,000 (L) 60.12%
EnEAA
Heroic Hour Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 942,199,659 (L) 29.80%
P A B fE o (B EE1)
WAN Yuhua (Note 2) Interest of children under the age of 18 734,797,818 (L) 23.25%
B EE (fsF2) NI E F 2 s
CHEN Cynthia Yuping (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
BR & 47 (Ff 51 3) discretionary trust)
St @ A GERIBE)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
HAh,
CHEN Li Zi (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
CHENLi Zi (Kt 3%3) discretionary trust)
ErEXm A GERMBER)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
H
CHEN Zheng Sheng (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
CHEN Zheng Sheng (Fff £3) discretionary trust)
FrEX @A GERIEER)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%

HAt



BIER(EE)ZRARLE —Z-AFFHK

Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEHS(H)

51

Approximate
percentage of
Number of ordinary issued share
shares of the capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interest Company held Company
RAade
BITRAF Z
BENAF EEEIHL
RERERE ERME EERRAHE (M &)
CHEN Zheng Yan (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
FR 1E 52 (P 5E3) discretionary trust)
Bt m A GEMIEBERT)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
H ity
CHEN Ya Shan (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
Por 7 = (PfT 52 3) discretionary trust)
S @m A GERIBE)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
H At
CHEN Bo Ling (Note 3) Beneficiary of a trust (other than a 122,466,303 (L) 3.87%
CHEN Bo Ling (Fff 5£3) discretionary trust)
ErEXm A GERMIBET)
Other 1,778,373,697 (L) 56.25%
EH A,
(L)—Long Position
(R =y
Notes: B 5E -
1. Heroic Hour was the beneficial owner of approximately 49.57% of the issued share 1. 7B #& Heroic Hour & Fortune Station 2 % 17 % 728 89 47

capital of Fortune Station and was deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Fortune Station.

2. The beneficial interests of WAN Yuhua'’s six children under the age of 18, namely
CHEN Cynthia Yuping, CHEN Li Zi, CHEN Zheng Sheng, CHEN Zheng Yan, CHEN Ya
Shan and CHEN Bo Ling in Heroic Hour, representing 78.00% of the issued share
capital of Heroic Hour, were also attributable to WAN Yuhua.

3. The interests of CHEN Cynthia Yuping, CHEN Li Zi, CHEN Zheng Sheng, CHEN Zheng
Yan, CHEN Ya Shan and CHEN Bo Ling were held as beneficiaries under a trust,
which held 100% of the issued share capital of Heroic Hour.

Other than as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2019, the
Company has not notified by any person (other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

49.57% B ¥ B A + Heroic Hour 4 1% 7 72 Fortune
StatonF A AR RNDPEFER

2. A8 EEISEARNU TN T L B -
CHEN Li Zi * CHEN Zheng Sheng ' FRIF 72 * BR =
K2 CHEN Bo Ling P & % 5 /8 #78.00% Heroic Hour
BETRANEEAGBNEEREE -

3. /B FE PR 4547 - CHEN Li Zi + CHEN Zheng Sheng * [&
E# - BRHEZMCHENBo Ling AR — S5 FH =
= A v I 1E 74 B Heroic Hour 2 0 B B 1TRE AN -

AT NAEFEFTA=T—H KLEX

IR BEAL 2 RRARAREIBEANE

EMAL(BFRARAEETIHESTRAER

SRR BB P REEREE SR
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Share Option Scheme and Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme

The Company has adopted two share option schemes, a share
option scheme dated on 20 May 2009 (the “Share Option Scheme”)
and a pre-IPO share option scheme dated on 10 December 2008 (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”), the purpose of which is to give
the Directors, senior management and employees of the Group an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company and help
motivate its employees to optimise their performance and efficiency,
and also to retain employees whose contributions are important to
the long-term growth and profitability of the Group.

Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme became effective on 20 May 2009 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, remained in force for 10
years from the date becoming effective. This scheme expired on 19
May 2019.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company, must not, in aggregate, exceed 30.0% (or such other
percentage as may be allowed under the Listing Rules) of the total
number of Shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number
of Shares issuable to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1.0% of the Shares
of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval at a
general meeting.

Share options granted to a connected person (or its associates) of
the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive Directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive Director of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time
and with an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance at
a general meeting.

BRESIANBRALCHABE
Al B PR RE ST &l

ARBDREERBT MBERENBEE
MERR-_ZTZNAFAA-THEAD
BaRES((BREFEHD) MR -FZF
NFTZATHERNERAFHEEH
BhEAS((ERLMBEBRER
B BENERARRAER SAERE
ABMEEBRE -—EHEELATARER
e UWHABLMRREEFRERN
o 30 DAL ¥R B AR L S N R B ) R AR B
ERBNENMEERERNES -

Ris AR 4 BT B

BREFENR _ZTZNFAA-THE
EXC BRIFSITHBUBSKMER] » B EE R
ZHEER AW RI0F - gEHEER
“E-AFERhATNBEEH-

EITERIBEERE S RARQFERE
fhEr IR A ARTTENMEEREM
BITHRMDAE TEHEBRAARAE %
1T 1D H9380.0% (3 1R ¥ T iR Al A &
ERNHEMBESL) - BREFENSES
ERSEEEEMN+ @A BB AELT
BOMZASBE T EBBEETMEM[MA
NAEIBEBEITERMDE1.0% - AR HH
ERERBEREMNBEREERERX
2 EHE -

BRYARRIZBEAL(REBEA) K
BEZEABEAZERE BELE
BBMEMITEEFRAE - UL EEM
T-EAHE FARFTARAETER
RRXBIFATES > HWE 2 A
BAZBREBEARREHTERND Z
01%K) U NMEBEECARRARFELZ
AeREERAERAE)BBBETLA
Br ARBRRERRAE EEE4E-



BIER(EE)ZRARLE —Z-AFFHK

Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEHS(H)

53

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted, upon payment
of an option price to be determined by the Board from time to time.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the Board, and commences after a certain vesting period and ends
on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board, but
shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer
date, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the Offer
Date; and (i) the nominal value of a Share.

As of 1 January and 31 December 2019, no shares option was
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, and there was no share
option granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 10 December 2008, the Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme. The Company granted options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 14,532,000 shares on 8 June 2009 to 42 participants at
a consideration of HK$1.0 each. The subscription price of the pre-
IPO share options would be at par value or at HK$1.19. The pre-IPO
share options that have not been exercised by the relevant grantees
prior to the tenth anniversary date of the grant date would lapse and
be deemed as cancelled and void. Save for the exercise of the
630,000 options by Mr. WONG Sin Yung as mentioned below, all
other pre-IPO share options that were outstanding as at 1 January
2019 have lapsed during the year under review.
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Among the granted share options, a total of 4,200,000 pre-IPO share
options were granted to two executive Directors on 8 June 2009. Of
which, options to subscribe for a total of 840,000 shares held by a
director resigned on 28 May 2013 were forfeited on the same date.
630,000 options were exercised by an executive Director during the
year ended 31 December 2019. Movement of these share options
during the year ended 31 December 2019 were as follows:

EFEBETFTLEENBERES RZ2ZFZ
NENANE RRAIBTMEBHITES
& #£4,200,000 f% # & X A 5 2 E BB IR
EoEh —REER T —=FRA=
+/\B B EmmHEFFE S $£840,000% 1 #E
BEERBRBRR - R_E—NLF+=
A=+—BLTFE —Z2RTESTE
7630000 R - ELEBERAREE
EREEE T - NAFt+_A=1+—

HIEFENE(CAMAMT
Number of share options
ROBRERE
Approximate
percentage of
Outstanding Granted  Exercised Forfeited Outstanding issued share
Exercise price as at during during during as at capital of the
Name of director Date of grant (HKD) 1 January 2019 the year the year the year 31 December 2019 Company (%) Exercise Period
BE-EB-NF BE-E-hE AR
-A-8 RER RER RER +=A=+-8H BRITRAHE
EZEE RER THREGERT) HATHE RFHEE  TEHE ¥ 8 RAT HEAL(%) TEHHE
WONG Sin Yung 8 June 2009 Par Value 630,000 - 630,000 - - 0.01 4 July 2014 to 8 June 2019
HER ZZTAFRANR EfE “T-mFLANAE
—ZT-NEXANR
Total 630,000 - 630,000 - - 0.01
At
Apart from the above, options to subscribe for a total of 10,332,000 Bt A4 EF-EZE A F A NAH ' B

Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were granted to 40
other employees of the Group on 8 June 2009.

As at 1 January 2019, there was a balance of unexpired and
unexercised option to subscribe for 1,586,760 Shares (which was
inclusive of Mr. WONG Sin Yung’s share options). Save for the
exercise of the 630,000 options as mentioned above, all other pre-
IPO share options that were outstanding as at 1 January 2019 have
lapsed during the year under review. Except as disclosed above, no
further pre-IPO share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed for the year ended 31 December 2019. Details of Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 29 on pages 156 to 159
under the section headed “Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements” in this annual report.

BEA A AABERERETS BXF
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Continuing connected transactions

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had the following
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules:

1. Lease Agreement for the Group's production facilities,
office premises and staff dormitory
On 1 December 2017, Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou
Bawang entered into a lease agreement (the “New Lease
Agreement”) for the Group’s production facilities, office
premises and staff dormitory, which is located at 468 Guanghua
3rd Road, Bawang Industrial Complex, Baiyun District,
Guangzhou, the PRC, and terminated the 2016 Production
Plant Lease Agreement and the 2016 Office Premises Lease
Agreement both dated 9 August 2016 with immediate effect.
The New Lease Agreement is for a lease term of three years
commencing on 1 December 2017 which is renewable at the
option of Bawang Guangzhou by giving one month’s notice
prior to the expiry of the lease. The monthly rent (exclusive of
management fee and other outgoings, which are payable to an
independent third party management company) in aggregate is
RMB719,857.56 and is fixed throughout the term of the lease.
Details of the New Lease Agreement were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 1 December 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, pursuant to the New
Lease Agreement, the rent paid by Bawang Guangzhou to
Guangzhou Bawang was approximately RMB8.6 million.

As of 31 December 2017, Guangzhou Bawang was beneficially
owned as to 20% by Mr. CHEN Zheng He, the CEO and an
executive Director of the Company, and 80% by Mr. CHEN
Zheng He’s six brothers and sisters. The transactions
contemplated under the New Lease Agreement therefore
constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company.
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2. Packaging Material Supply Agreement

The Company and Chenming Paper entered into a packaging
material supply agreement on 1 June 2018, pursuant to which
Chenming Paper agreed to supply packaging material to
Bawang Guangzhou from time to time at prices that are
reviewed regularly based on arm’s length negotiations between
the Group and Chenming Paper for a term of three years
commencing from 1 June 2018 (the “Packaging Material
Supply Agreement”). In determining the prevailing market
rates, and to ensure that the terms of purchase of packaging
materials under the Packaging Material Supply Master
Agreement are no less favourable than those offered by
independent third parties, the Company will obtain quotations
from two or more suppliers that are independent from the
Group on a regular basis (but no less frequently than once every
three months to determine the prevalent market prices and
terms of the supply of packaging materials in similar quantities.
For details of the terms of the Packaging Material Supply
Agreement, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 1 June 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, pursuant to the
Packaging Material Supply Agreement, the annual transaction
amount for the supply of packaging material by Chenming
Paper to Bawang Guangzhou was approximately RMB3.9
million.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is a Director. Chenming Paper is wholly
owned by Mr. CHEN Qiwen, who is Mr. CHEN Qiyuan’s
brother. The transactions contemplated under the Packaging
Material Supply Agreement therefore constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company.
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The internal control and risk management functions of the Group
together with the senior management of the Group had reviewed the
continuing connected transactions of the Company for the year under
review, the scope of review included whether the premises lease
agreements were implemented in accordance with their terms,
whether the packaging materials purchased from the Company’s
connected person were purchased in accordance with the provisions
and the pricing as stipulated in the Packaging Material Supply
Agreement, and whether the transaction amount of each continuing
connected transaction had exceeded its respective annual cap.
During the year under review, the Company and Chenming Paper
had completed a review of the prices offered by Chenming Paper.
The results of the review had been provided to the Board.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the above connected transactions. The Company also
confirms that during the year under review it has followed the policies
and guidelines as described above in determining the pricing and the
terms of the continuing connected transactions. The Company further
confirms that the related party transactions that are set out in Note
34 under the section headed “Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements” in this annual report fall within the definition of connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and these
transactions complied with the relevant connected transaction
requirements thereunder.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions were
entered into the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company, on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole; and the respective
annual caps are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole and the transaction amounts of such
continuing connected transactions did not exceed their respective
annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group above in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’ interests in
contracts of significance

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Continuing connected
transactions” in this annual report, no Director or Controlling
Shareholder, or an entity connected with a Director or a Controlling
Shareholder has or had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party which was subsisting during or
at the end of the 2019 financial year.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’ interest in
competing business

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors and their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or the controlling
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company had
any interest in a business, which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

Retirement schemes

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
plans which cover the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and a
Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the employees in Hong Kong.
Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report. There was no
forfeited contribution available to reduce the contribution payable
under the above schemes.

Corporate governance

Save as disclosed in this annual report, for the year ended 31
December 2019, all the code provisions set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules were met by the
Company.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has reviewed the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 with the
management of the Company and the Company’s independent
auditors and recommended its adoption by the Board.
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Auditors

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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Directors

During the year under review, the Board consisted of six Directors,
including three executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The following table sets forth certain information
in respect of our Directors:

=

REBEFERN EFEm 2EFHA
K BR=Z2RTEER=2BILIFEY
TEEZ - TREJBREFNETER

Name Age Position/Title

" A FEe BAu/EE

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan 58 Chairman and Executive Director

PR RUR 55 4 ITERBTES

Mr. CHEN Zheng He 31 CEO and Executive Director

PR IE#5 % & BEERITERNTES

Mr. WONG Sin Yung 65 Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director
BEERELE BEEMBERNTES

Dr. NGAI Wai Fung 58 Independent non-executive Director
REEELT BIRTESF

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing 65 Independent non-executive Director
RIFERSEAE BYIFAITES

Dr. WANG Qi 40 Independent non-executive Director
ImiEt BYERITESR

Executive Directors HMITES

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, aged 58, is the co-founder of our Group, our
chairman and has been our executive Director since 12 November
2007. Mr. CHEN is responsible for the overall strategic planning and
management of our Group. Mr. CHEN has extensive experience in
the Chinese herbal HPC product industry, having been engaged in
the consumer chemical product business for over 20 years. Mr.
CHEN entered into the HPC product business by establishing
Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd. (the predecessor entity of
the Company) in 1994. Mr. CHEN was engaged in the trading of
pesticides in the PRC before the establishment of Guangzhou
Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd.. In November of 2010, Mr. CHEN
Qiyuan was recognised as the “Representative Successor of Chinese
Herbal Tea Culture” by the Guangdong Provincial Bureau of Culture.
In December 2013, Mr. CHEN Qiyuan had been honoured as the
“Distinguished People of Yunfu City” for recognition of his contribution
to the development of the city. Mr. CHEN is the father of Mr. CHEN
Zheng He, an executive Director and the CEO of the Company.
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Mr. CHEN Zheng He, aged 31, was appointed as our executive
Director on 20 October 2014. Mr. CHEN joined the Group in March
2007 and has been officially appointed as a director of Bawang
Guangzhou and afterwards certain other subsidiaries of the Group
since then and started to involve in the planning of sales, marketing,
advertising and promotion campaigns of Bawang Guangzhou. Mr.
CHEN was appointed as the personal assistant to the chief executive
officer of the Company since March 2012, mainly responsible for the
daily administration and management of Bawang Guangzhou. Since
mid-2013, Mr. CHEN has also been responsible for the supervision
and execution of sales, marketing, advertising and promotion
campaigns of Bawang Guangzhou. Mr. CHEN works closely with the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company on
formulating overall strategic plan and management of the Group, and
executing strategic plans in marketing, and sales and distribution. Mr.
CHEN has been appointed as the CEO and Remuneration Committee
Member with effect from 9 December 2015. Mr. CHEN obtained the
degree of bachelor of commerce from the University of Toronto in
2012. Mr. CHEN is the son of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the chairman and
an executive Director of the Company.

Mr. WONG Sin Yung, aged 65, is our Chief Financial Officer and
executive Director. Mr. WONG joined our Group in April 2008 and
was appointed as our executive Director on 10 December 2008. Mr.
WONG was also appointed as our Chief Financial Officer and our
Company Secretary since December 2008. He is responsible for the
finance management and control, accounting, auditing, company
secretarial and investor relations of our Group. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. WONG was an executive director of China Ting Group
Holdings Limited (03398), from 2005 to 2008, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. WONG was the chief
accountant and finance manager of Mark Wong & Associates (Industrial
Consultants) Limited from 1988 to 1992 and from 1994 to 2003
respectively. He also worked for a certified public accountant firm
from 1992 to 1994. Mr. WONG has over 30 years experience in
corporate finance, accounting, auditing, corporation administration,
and project consulting. He is an associate member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. WONG obtained a
master’s degree in human resource management from Macquarie
University in 1996 and a master’s degree in business administration
from The University of Hong Kong in 1999.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. NGAlI Wai Fung (Fi{£1£), aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 10
December 2008. He is the group chief executive officer of SWCS
Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, a specialty company
secretarial, corporate governance and compliance services provider
to companies in pre-IPO and post-IPO stages. Prior to that, he was
the director and head of listing services of an independent integrated
corporate services provider. He has over 30 years of professional
practice and senior management experience including acting as the
executive director, chief financial officer and company secretary, most
of which are in the areas of finance, accounting, internal control and
risk management, regulatory compliance, corporate governance and
secretarial work for listed issuers including major red chips
companies. Dr. Ngai had led or participated in a number of significant
corporate finance projects including listings, mergers and acquisitions
as well as issuance of debt securities. He is a member of the General
Committee of the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies and has
been appointed as a Finance Expert Consultant by the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC since 2016. He was the President of Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries (2014-2015), an unofficial member
of the Working Group on Professional Services under the Economic
Development Commission of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (2013-2018) and a member of the Qualification and
Examinations Board of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (2013-2018). Dr. Ngai is currently the independent non-
executive director of Bosideng International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 3998. HK), Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1238.HK), Health and Happiness (H&H) International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1112.HK), SITC International Holdings
Company Limited (Stock Code: 1308.HK), Beijing Capital Grand
Limited (Stock Code: 1329.HK), BBMG Corporation (Stock Code:
2009.HK), TravelSky Technology Limited (Stock Code: 696.HK) and
China Communications Construction Company Limited (Stock Code:
1800.HK) and also the independent director of LDK Solar Co., Ltd.
and SPI Energy Co., Ltd. Apart from LDK Solar Co., Ltd. and SPI
Energy Co., Ltd., which are now listed on the OTC Pink Limited
Information and Nasdaqg respectively, all of which are companies
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and/or the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Dr. Ngai was the independent non-executive director of
China Coal Energy Company Limited (Stock Code: 1898.HK) from
December 2010 to June 2017, China Railway Group Limited (Stock
Code: 390.HK) from June 2014 to June 2017, HKBridge Financial
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2323.HK) from March 2016 to April
2018 and Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited
Company (Stock Code: 6869.HK) from September 2014 to Jan
2020.
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Dr. Ngai is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow of the Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators),
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, a fellow
of Hong Kong Institute of Directors, a member of the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute and a member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators. Dr. Ngai received a doctoral degree in Finance
from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics, a master’s
degree in Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, a bachelor honor degree in Laws from University of
Wolverhampton in the United Kingdom and a master’s degree in
Business Administration from Andrews University of Michigan in the
United States.

Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing (3R %8 5 4), aged 65, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 13 November 2014. Mr.
CHEUNG has over 30 years of experience in information technology,
financial accounting, auditing and management. Mr. CHEUNG is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. Since February 1999, Mr. CHEUNG has been a director and
lead consultant of Sunplex Consultants Limited, a company providing
human resources management and information technology
consultancy services to its clients (including government organisations
and private companies). Mr. CHEUNG had been an independent
director of Principal Trust Company (Hong Kong) Limited (formerly
known as AXA China Region Trustees Limited) from August 1999 to
August 2015 and an independent non-executive director of Bank of
Communications Trustee Limited from November 2003 to January
2018. Mr. CHEUNG has been an independent non-executive director
of ENM Holdings Limited (00128) since June 2016, Trio Industrial
Electronics Group Limited (01710) since February 2017, and Kin
Pang Holdings Limited (01722) since November 2017, companies
whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Mr CHEUNG joined Self Strengthening Service Centre
Limited (B3&AkiSH O EBRAT]), which is a company limited by
guarantee and an approved charitable organization, as a director on
a voluntary basis with effect from 30 September 2019. Mr. CHEUNG
had held several positions, including Assistant Manager, Manager
and Senior Manager between September 1980 and July 1991 in
Coopers & Lybrand. Mr. CHEUNG had been a partner of Coopers &
Lybrand since March 1995, and had been a partner of
PricewaterhouseCoopers since Coopers & Lybrand was merged with
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Price Waterhouse into PricewaterhouseCoopers in October 1998
until his resignation in May 1999. Mr. CHEUNG was Director of
Operations and Finance of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants between July 2004 and April 2008 and a consultant of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants between April
2008 and August 2008. Mr. CHEUNG obtained a Bachelor of
Commerce from The University of Calgary in Canada in June 1979.

Dr. WANG Qi (E3&F{8 1), aged 40, is currently the vice director of
the Dongguan Institute of Opto-electronics, Peking University. Prior to
that, from 2010 to 2012, he was a research associate in the
Department of Electronic and Electrical Engineering of the University
of Sheffield in the United Kingdom, and also worked at Seren
Photonics Ltd, a company in the United Kingdom which focuses on
the development and manufacturing of semi-polar and non-polar
Gallium Nitride templates. From 2012 to 2014, he was a postdoctoral
research fellow in the Department of Electrical and Computer
Engineering of McGill University in Canada.

Dr. WANG is a member of the Dongguan committee of the Jiusan
Society, the chairman of the Songshan Lake branch of the Dongguan
committee of the Jiusan Society, a vice chairman of the technological
innovation promotion committee of the Dongguan Committee of the
Jiusan Society, an entrepreneurship mentor of the Dongguan
Business Incubation Association and a member of the Dongguan
Songshan Lake High-tech Industry Development Zone Science and
Technology Association. He is also the legal representative and an
executive director of the Dongguan Yanyuan Technological Assets
Management Company Limited. He was recognised as a special
professional of Dongguan City (3rd Class Distinctive Talent) by the
Office for the Administration of Talent Affairs of Dongguan City in
2017.

Dr. WANG obtained a bachelor’s degree in physics (magnetism) from
Lanzhou University in 2001. He studied at the Department of Physics
of Peking University from 2002 to 2008. He obtained a Doctor of
Philosophy in the Faculty of Engineering Department of Electronic
and Electrical Engineering from the University of Sheffield in the
United Kingdom in 2010.
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

fkeo

Shinezot'ng

TO THE MEMBERS OF
BAWANG INTERNATIONAL (GROUP) HOLDING LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of BaWang
International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 73 to 171, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

HBEIEKR(REZRERIARR
(REEHSZEMEZLHERLE])

=R

RMEBHINSENEBEEI7TIERT
BER(EE)ERERARTERRD &
EFRRAIATABIEEENEEY
BHRER EPBERER-_Z—NLF+=A
—t+t—HHREYBMRAER UREE
ZBLEFEMNRABRREREMEZEK
mR HRAEZEHRNGEARAESTE
X UREEUBRENT BEEES
FTBRBE -

PRS-
et flZEe((EReERZE
g ) B BRMEREER (AT EHE
[BER B REEA) BEE M Qi R
EEER-_F-NAF+-_A=+—HZ
BHEAREEBEZBILEFEZHBER
BRGERERE YEER(BELRF
GFREDHBEBERFERETEERE -

SRHOVER

AITERBEBEEGMASRMO(ER
FEERDETES - EEBLERT K
1TH B & £ 7 £ BLED 3R & 10 12 BUam oA
HAEMBBRAAENEEIPFL R
BEREBEMMAS ZBESMEBRET
AR NITELRESE - I
EEETRETEMBEEEL K174
B AITHESNEZERER T EME
EHARNTHESZERIEHRER -



66

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2019

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BIUZBEIRS(R)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment of trade receivables

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

The key audit matter
BRELER

BREZEE

RERMANEXHE BREZFEAR
AITERARGEEVBRRPREEN
FE-ATTEERBEREAMBHRRM
AETKEESEBEEFEE I
UL EFREFEREL -

58 55 B U R 2% B B £
SRR AM B HRERME21

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERPHEESE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had trade receivables
of approximately RMB21,478,000, net of accumulated
impairment loss of approximately RMB4,612,000.

RZE-—NF+-_A=+—"H EEEEFEWER
EHANREE21,478,0007T 0 RETBEFBEAHARE
4,612,000 7T ©

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables is based on
expected credit losses (“ECL”), which is estimated by
taking into account the credit loss experience and forward-
looking information including both current and forecast
general economic conditions.

BIZREEFRENREBEEENEHREERX(EY
FERKD EERTEERRERMEET BATH
BRI R REBEERNRIEFE R -

We have identified valuation of trade receivables as a key
audit matter because of their significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the impairment
assessment of trade receivables involved a significant
degree of management judgement and subject to
management bias.

BMEEZREBRANBEMNEEE SBRETS
H-ASEEZRUEEFBEFESINEEBNEX
e ERAEFER RIRBMNIER -

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
assumptions and judgements of the Group’s ECL on
impairment assessment of trade receivables.

BPNEAIEFEEYEEENE 5B KRN E
AEEREERAELNRER LA EIR L ERE -

We have assessed the reasonableness of
management’s estimates for impairment allowance by
examining the information used by management to form
such judgements, including testing accuracy of the
historical default data, evaluating whether the historical
loss rates are appropriately adjusted based on current
economic conditions and forward-looking information.

fEERAEEERAEL LAABNER &
EARELEZNBEMNEREE FEELBXEXE
BREBEAFOHLERALAEEERHELEE HE
KFEHEEERAREREBENGIENE-

We have also inspected settlements from debtors after
year end relating to trade receivables balance as at 31
December 2019 on a sample basis.

BPUEMBERE TFRARKEBB AR S LR
E-NF+_A=T—BESERKRERKEEHAD
Bee
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Allowance of inventories

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

The key audit matter
BREXERE

EFRIEME
SREAMBHRRME19-

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERPHEERLE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had inventories of
approximately RMB29,382,000, net of accumulated
allowance of approximately RMB1,889,000.

R-ZZBE-NAFT-_A=+—H BEEEFEEOAR
#29,382,0007T * & 5HF B /K A K #1,889,0007T °

Taking into account of the variety and relatively short life
cycles of the Group’s products, there are risks on
obsolescence of long aged inventories which may affect
the valuation of inventories held as at year end.

ERINESEERRRES RERBRAYRE &
RRENGFEABRNEARIZEFREFENMEE-

We have identified valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter because of their significance to the consolidated
financial statements and the involvement of significant
judgement and estimation on the assessment of the net
realisable values with reference to the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions.

BMEFENREFERESEREFETE ERT
MESAEMBREPNEEL  UNBERHNER
EBRME R TISERET - 5 &2 S &3 FENF
EBMERHABHMEE -

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
management’s estimations and judgements on the
assessment of net realisable value of inventories and
identification of obsolete item based on their subsequent
usage and selling prices subsequent to the end of the
reporting period and current market conditions.

BAMRFOEARFEEFLEEBYFENAE
BOREMFMAE RECHREBRENREERS
MEITEOHER - LA RBERREHRNEEERNE
A B T 55 5IR0 ©

We have assessed the net realisable value and utilisation
of inventories subsequent to the end of the reporting
period on a sample basis and discussed with the
management in respect of the adequacy of the
allowance made based on subsequent usage and sales,
ageing analysis and current market conditions. We have
also assessed the assumptions and critical judgements
used by the management by assessing the reliability of
the management’s past estimates.

HIE@mE R AEEE N ® A MENR BN ER
MEEBN RO MBATW IS BEREET
DURFE T HREMERNFE AR FENERE
BENBER - ZMBFRTEREBREANRRMNA
B ARTHEEENBEN GO EN. -
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Impairment on property, plant and equipment and Y% BHERSBHENEHESIENR

right-of-use assets

Refer to notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

The key audit matter
BREXER

8
DERZEPBEHRERPMFEI7MA8 -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERPHEERGE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets of approximately
RMB98,305,000, net of accumulated impairment losses of
approximately RMB113,622,000, and RMB30,425,000
respectively.

HE-_Z-—NFE+_A=Z+—8 AEEHNYE K
ERREMERAEEEDHAREKIS3050007T @ F
2 EED AN A AR 113,622,000 f1 A R
30,425,000 7T °

We have identified impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as a key audit matter
because of their significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the determination of the recoverable
amount of these assets required significant management
judgement relating to items such as level of revenue and
amount of operating costs and discount rate.

BMERBETYE BEARBNEREEEER
AREZER AAtMERaVBERENEZE
MELEENA KD ENEERTEZAMED ENNK
AKF -~ RERAR S BMITHNRNERE I H G-

Our audit procedures were designed to obtain
management’s assessment and reassess the
reasonableness of the selection of valuation model,
adoption of key assumptions and input data. In
particular, we have tested the future cash flow forecast
on whether it is agreed to the budget approved by the
board of directors and compared the budget with actual
results available up to the report date. We have also
reassessed the appropriateness of the assumptions,
including the sales growth rates and gross profit margin
against latest market expectations.

BMRANBARFER T EFEEENHE MK
AERBRRNBABEEGHERIEZNSEED
Bt B2 HMASKEHMATRENRE KA
A E=ZgRERBEEMNIELEARA M DEK
SAMBEERERBRET TR HABLERH
AEBRERNESE BEREEEREMENKEAR
AN TIZES -

We have also reassessed the discount rate employed in
the calculation of value in use by reviewing its basis of
calculation and comparing its input data to market
sources.

BB B B BRI L K A MBS
ik B ETER G T LA S H A EE N R

As any changes in these assumptions and input to
valuation model may result in significant financial impact,
we have tested management’s sensitivity analysis in
relation to the key inputs to the impairment assessment.

RN ELBREMEERREANTMNE{CAEES
HELEANPKEE RACSKAATEEESR
FEBENFENEEG AGBOSREDN -
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors of the Company and
Audit and Risk Management Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Audit and Risk Management Committee is responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

2 BB L AR S B R R R A K
EHEME

ATWBEBRERAERTERMS SR
EMBHRELS N FEEANHEREM (T
WEDARNRFRERMENDN) LR
BATHOENERNOTEMRKA ERA
(FR—EER)ZELEEEXRE LMK
BRED RS - BR UL Z SN RIEE AR B B o K77
AR A EZ WA MR E A A L AR
TRETHRIETAERT - aBEERB
EERANEE BETEERRE(EESR
FPERDETHNES TERRBERMAERF
ERERNERRM - EX#ERR A AR
REFFRER HMENKEBESER
HEATAZEERERBEEAMB R
RIFLWEBERER  HRAREKRHER
Rt -

AIOIRBCEABFEADETEFNTL
k2 — BEREXHAL EBEFZAE
BPEFSBERREEE - KT

e BANMABEEBEHSEAMBHRENR
MBAERAR(BEREEHHBRK
MEFMEB R REFMATERE
LERANESREF MERITHM
BENEABBRRAERATHER
RUEM - ERXMFESRAR B
EHOBMBER REMRAXHR
R ER - AU R B B
FF T BE KR A R R A2 L i 88
RMERERERNEAR/D -

o FREETE TIEAR B A R AR IE Bl
NEBEFRENEFEF BIF
HESBENABZEGHAEREERRE
8 o

e HERREFEMETHRNRE
MEMEL S EFTMEREENS
B



BIER(EE)ZRARLE —Z-AFFHK

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

BIUZHBETERS (48)

7

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Management Committee
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Management Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk
Management Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Hon Kei, Anthony.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P05591

Hong Kong
31 March 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE =T —NEF+=-A=1+—HIFE

a
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2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR T AR®ET T
Revenue s 7 258,158 293,922
Cost of sales RN (143,137) (156,425)
Gross profit EF 115,021 137,497
Other income H g A 8 3,030 3,114
Selling and distribution costs $HE &9 H A (104,724) (113,360)
Administrative expenses THFAX (30,570) (25,838)
Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment & 5 i i B8R 7% 2 i (&
losses) recognised in respect of trade Bk b CrEE
receivables KHER) 21 4,807 (2,196)
Other expenses H A f (461) (37)
Operating loss KRR (12,897) (820)
Finance costs M5 &R 9 (2,267) (376)
Loss before taxation 1 Bl B 18 (15,164) (1,196)
Income tax credit T 15 7% [B] # 10 9,064 —
Loss for the year attributable to owners of KRR Rl AB AL 2
the Company FANEE 11 (6,100) (1,196)
Other comprehensive expense EMEANEZES T
Item that will not be reclassified TewEHEARE
subsequently to profit or loss: @mmIEE -
Exchange differences arising on translation FE#INEEE K EHR S
of financial statements from functional FRERAUEMER
currency to presentation currency =% (976) (1,784)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for & X & # B A FE(L 2
the year attributable to owners of the FABERETHEX
Company 4858 (7,076) (2,980)
Loss per share BREE 14
Basic EH K RMB(0.1929) RMB(0.0378)
cents cents
AR®(0.1929)li A R®(0.0378)1L
Diluted 5% RMB(0.1929) RMB(0.0378)
cents cents

AR¥(0.1929)11 A RE(0.0378)lL
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As at 31 December 2019 R=Z—hF+-_A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M5 AR® Tt AR T T

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 17 98,305 115,021
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 18 30,425 —
128,730 115,021

Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 19 29,382 39,610
Right to returned goods asset RETFE 2 #EF 20 2,319 2,392
Trade and other receivables B hEMEIER 21 26,053 36,035
Amounts due from related parties FEUN B8 Bt 75 TR 18 34(a) 1,493 4,706
Deposit with bank BITFER 22 — 20,000
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERS 22 102,195 65,483
161,442 168,226
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables EoRAMEMNER 23 75,676 81,368
Amounts due to related parties FE T RE B 5 T IE 34(a) 47 2,488
Contract liabilities B E 24 10,775 7,587
Refund liabilities EEBE 25 3,894 4,164
Lease liabilities HERE 18 7,330 —
Bank borrowing RITHER 26 9,650 12,550
Income tax payables JEA T8 F7 - 9,070
Provision FTIRE A 27 338 338
107,710 117,565
Net current assets TREEEZE 53,732 50,661
Total assets less current liabilities BEFEE 182,462 165,682

Non-current liability FkRBERE
Lease liabilities HEAE 18 23,802 —
Net assets BEE 158,660 165,682
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

REMBIRRE)

As at 31 December 2019 R=F—hF+=-A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 3E ARMETF T AR T T
Capital and reserves B AR % 45
Share capital A% AN 28(a) 277,932 277,878
Reserves 1 28(b) (119,272) (112,196)
Total equity ERHBE 158,660 165,682

The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 171 were F73F17T1EHNGAMBHEKEES
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 R-ZT-_ETF=AF=+—Hi#L ET HE

March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: REBRBHEERIT
Mr. CHEN Qiyuan Mr. CHEN Zheng He
BR BUIR BRIEER
Director Director

EF EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RoERBIR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE=—F—NFE+=-A=+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREBRKEABS
Share Share Statutory Capital Merger Translation Other Accumulated
capital  premium reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total

BA  BRAEE EERE EARE AHEE EXRE HibHG 2itEE RRLE
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTLE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARBTR ARETT ARETT
(note 28(b)) (note 28(b))  (note 28(b))  (note 28(b))  (note 28(b))  (note 28(b))
(Mskos)  (Hizrosi) (KizFosf) (Fzkos) (Miz2sb)) (MizE28(b)

At1 January 2018, as originally stated 7 = Z—\E—F—H 277,878 1,400,650 49,887 2,814 8,468 (30,448) 9,421 (1,548,424) 170,246
Adjustment on adoption REERSBREREIR

of IFRS 9 tAE - - - - - - - (1584 (1584
At 1 January 2018, as restated RZZE-N\E—F—8 WM& 277,878 1,400,650 49,887 2,814 8,468 (30,448) 9,421 (1,550,008) 168,662
Loss for the year FRNEE - - - - - - - (1,196) (1,196)
Other comprehensive expense Hip2@ET

for the year
Exchange differences arising on BONEBBEIERZE

translation of financial statements
from functional currency to

presentation currency - - - - - (1,784) - - (1,784)
Total comprehensive expense FREAZLEE

for the year - - - - - (1,784) - (1,196) (2,980)
At 31 December 2018 R-E-N\E+-A=+-AR 277,878 1400650 49,887 2,814 8468 (32232 9421 (1551204 165682
At 1 January 2019 R-E-NE—A—-H 277,878 1,400,650 49,887 2,814 8,468 (32,232) 9,421 (1,551,204) 165,682
Loss for the year FNER - - - - - - - (6,100) (6,100)
Other comprehensive expense H2EX M

for the year

Exchange differences arising on BIEBREZERZR
translation of financial statements
from functional currency to

presentation currency - - - - - (976) - - (976)
Total comprehensive expense FRE2EXLEE
for the year - - - - = (976) = (6,100) (7,076)
Effect of share options BREBEER
— Shares issue upon exercise - iR E
(note 28) (WizEos) 54 1,165 = (1,165) = = - - 54
— Lapse -k - - - (1,649) - - - 1,649 -

At 31 December 2019 R-Z-AE+-A=+-8 277,932 1,401,815 49,887 > 8468  (33,208) 9421 (1555655 158,660
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ=F—NF+_A=+—HILFE

77

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR®EF T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RESEE)
Loss before taxation TRl E 1A (15,164) (1,196)
Adjustments for: BB EL PR
Bank interest income |ITH E WA (514) (448)
Government grants received BT 78 B (1,403) (1,117)
(Reversal of allowance for inventories)/ (FEREBEEDND ),
allowance for inventories FEREERE (2,946) 2,220
Depreciation of property, plant and Y- WERRETE
equipment 20,691 19,787
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAEEENE 7,708 —
Finance costs B%ER 2,267 376
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment B 5 RWRIE 2 BEE X
loss recognised in respect of trade (B =), TR
receivables (4,807) 2,196
Loss on disposals of property, plant and BREWME BEIZEEX
equipment 182 37
Write-off of property, plant and equipment Y BB &R EREE 2 —
Obsolete inventories written-off BEATF EREE 2,547 2,421
Reversal of over provision of other payables LA B 68 J5 L th & 1< SR B 58
Rz B[O - (179
Operating cash flows before working capital BEECEBYNZIEEES
changes mE 8,563 24,097
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BEERLGEMm 10,627 (5,976)
Decrease in right to returned goods asset RETFE 2 MR 73 6,914
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 K H b e W s IR R 14,574 5,642
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 K H b JE 2R R (5,692) (3,041)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to JFE LA 88 Bt 5 Bk 08
related parties (R A) /18 (2,441) 1,142
Increase in amounts due from related JE 1~} 8 Bt 77 Bk TR A8 0
parties (1,150) —
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities BHEELICHD) 3,188 (8,649)
Decrease in refund liabilities BEABRD (270) (12,582)
Cash generated from operations KEEEMNBRESR 27,472 7,547
Income tax paid =ENRIECE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid ENFETERSR (6) -
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES R& ZHEL WAL TE 27,466 7,547
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=F—NF+=A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR F T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Withdrawal of deposit with bank REVIRITER 20,000 —
Repayment from related parties KB ER 4,363 2,241
Bank interest received B WER1TFIE 729 449
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant EEYE B };E% N EER
and equipment Fr 1S 518 91 38
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWME BWENMKE (4,226) (2,289)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZTHELWBEESTE 20,957 439
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mESEE
Repayment of bank borrowing EERITER (12,550) —
Repayment of lease liabilities BEMEEER (7,001) -
Interest paid B F 8 (2,267) (376)
New bank borrowing raised LR 1T Ft 7 9,650 12,550
Government grants received W B BT #6 Bh & 1,403 1,117
Proceeds from exercise of share options TENREZERETE R IE 54 —
NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM FINANCING R EEH (FifH)/EE W
ACTIVITIES BeEE (10,711) 13,201
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERREEEYEMER
EQUIVALENTS 37,712 21,277
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REDzBEERRSEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 65,483 46,050
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE Exgmgge
CHANGES (1,000) (1,844)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATEND REXKzZ2HENBESZEY
OF THE YEAR, representing bank balances ~ El#5#R17& 7 RIE &
and cash 102,195 65,483
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General

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is Fortune
Station Limited (“Fortune Station”), which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is owned as to: (1) 49.57%
by Heroic Hour Limited, a company that is beneficially owned
as to 22.00% by Mr. CHEN Zheng He, the chief executive
officer and an executive director of the Company, and 78.00%
by Mr. CHEN Zheng He’s six brothers and sisters; and (2)
50.43% by Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the chairman of the board of
directors of the Company (the “Directors”).

The address of the registered office is at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and the principal place of business is at 468
Guanghua 3rd Road, Bawang Industrial Complex, Baiyun
District, Guangzhou, 510450, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
manufacturing and sales of the household and personal care
products.

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the
principal subsidiaries of the Group where the primary economic
environment is in the PRC. Other than the subsidiaries
established in the PRC which functional currencies are RMB,
the functional currency of the Company and other subsidiaries
is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”).

— &R

FIBEBR(EE)ERBERAA(R
RERHAESHSTMAKLAER
CHRERRARANTEETEH AR
SHBERARUBMRAT]) £ H
BEESARAERBELHES([H
& Bz B & |) 7 i B9 Fortune Station
Limited ([ Fortune Station]) © £ B& 5
% % A (1) Heroic Hour Limited % &
49.57% * 7% A 7) #922.00% % # B 4
RAIZHITEERERERITEMRE
BAXEE=FE MHB T 278.00%
Bl EBTEZ N BHKRE =
B RQARFANESTSEFRK
B AW AB50.43% ([EH]) -

N~ A A 9% 2= R #Y 3 4k 7% Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands * £ Z & ¥ B B R E A
REHXMBE(HFBRDEMNTAER
Bit =468 B T TR BiR
510450

ARBREMBARATHRER
(AEEDNETERELEERHER
AREAERERER -

AEEES—HAEENMEHREM
HEAEAZREECMEN I REHE
REMNEB(NEEB]) RFAE-
RETBHRRAARBIARED
RN ARBEASEIZ TR
EHBENTELEERRETITNNES
K- BREPERARINUARE
REEALENF AR AQA
MEMFRAFRNCEAUEREE
(B’ -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=F—NF+=A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards

(“IFRS(5)")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for its first time, the
following new and amendments to IFRSs, which include IFRSs,
International Accounting Standards (“IAS(s)”), amendments and
interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”) and the IFRS Interpretations Committee

(“IFRIC”) of the IASB.

IFRS 16

IFRIC 23

Amendments to IFRS 9
Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IAS 28

Amendments to IFRSs

Leases

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-
2017 Cycle

The adoption of IFRS 16 resulted in the changes in the Group’s
accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements as summarised below.

The application of other new and amendments to IFRSs in the
current year has had no material effect on the Group’s financial
performance and position for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.

2.

7 97 5T T 4545 3T B 1
5 35 £ 2 8 ([ = % o1 15 3
£ 3T

RAFE  NEBEHXERTIHE
RAINMEETBEERMERE LR &
EhBEERerEEEe RERS
AAEAMEEE ARV BERERE
ZEERMOBERYBREER
BEegtERET R B(R
Bl

BIFR B 15 ¥ 5 HE

#E QI 5 1657

BIFR B 15 s Fr 15 B Bz 32 &Y
R RE T HEE 1

ZEEFE23

B B B 755 3R 25 2E Rl B A+ 45 1 BB
FORZBIIA AamE

B B & 5 4 A sHEME R - 4B
FAGRZBAIA HEE

BB 52 R BENAMEE

Fo8 BRI A EMNEH
W =

BB B 75 3R B B B 7% 3R 5 2

R ZEFT A Bl FEWE
(Z=2=—H%F
2T —+4&F
EE)

F& BB B 7% ¥R &5 YE R 5516 5% 5| 2
AEBEBSFTHRRMELES VB ®EK
MERNFHB B ROT

RAFERMBEMIFATREEFTH
BEREVBEREENERNEERAF
B RARFENTHRRERRR
R/SEAMBRREPABARE
WEEBRTE -
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Application of New and Amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“|FRS( ) ) (Continued)

Impacts on adoption of IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with respect
to lease accounting. It introduces significant changes to the
lessee accounting by removing the distinction between
operating lease and finance lease and requiring the recognition
of right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets. In contrast to
lessee accounting, the requirements for lessor accounting have
remained largely unchanged. Details of these new accounting
policies are described in note 3. The Group has applied IFRS 16
Leases retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial
application as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity,
where appropriate, at 1 January 2019. Comparative information
has not been restated and continues to be reported under I1AS
17 Leases.

On transition to IFRS 16, the Group elected to apply the
practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which
arrangements are, or contain, leases. It applied IFRS 16 only to
contracts that were previously identified as leases. Contracts
that were not identified as leases under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4
were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition of a lease under
IFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts entered into or
changed on or after 1 January 2019.

The Group as lessee

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in
relation to leases which had previously been classified as
“operating leases” under the principles of IAS 17 Leases (except
for lease of low value assets and lease with remaining lease
term of twelve months or less). These liabilities were measured
at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of
1 January 2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January 2019
was ranged from 4.8% to 5.0%.

2.

FERHEBEMEEESERNE16R
HAENRE
BB B sREER F165HHE
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FevBBEBEREEHENRENR
EvHEmER - EkEmEHRE(E
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HestxEErE K& BEAM
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KERNRBFETE - EEFLBR
RIMENFE R K53 e REBMNUIEEFT R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=F—NF+=A=+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Amendments to 2.
International Financial Reporting Standards
(”|FRS(S)”) (Continued)

Impacts on adoption of IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

The following table summaries the impact of transition to IFRS
16 at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not affected by the
adjustments have not been included.

Carrying

amount

previously

reported at

31 December

2018

BE-Z-N\F
+=ZA=+—H
WIRE £ M

Note RMB’000
k=3 AR®EF T

FERERMSESENF165R
HEHRE R
FREEREEA ()

TERBAT —_T-NAEF-HA—HM
B 15 iS R 165 BIENF
2 - RAXFARFENHBEIERE
7] o

Carrying

amount as

Impact on restated at
adoption of 1 January
IFRS 16 2019
ERER BEZE-F-NF

B % ) &5 2E A —HA—8
F16HEHNTE WIRE S
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETTT AR T T

Right-of-use assets FEREEE (a) — 38,133 38,133
Lease liabilities HE&E (@) — 38,133 38,133
Note: Bi&E

(@ As at 1 January 2019, right-of-use assets were measured at an amount equal (a) HE_Z-hWhE—-—A—H FTRAEEER

to the lease liability of approximately RMB38,133,000.

The Group recognises right-of-use assets and measures them
at an amount equal to the lease liabilities. The transition to IFRS
16 had no impact on the accumulated losses at 1 January
2019.

ERREERENEBHERNARYE
38,133,0007T ©

AEBEBRAERAEEE XYAUF
AREERENESRTEMM -
BEGBEREENFIFRNBES
—E-NAF-A-HBHWRFAEBHER
BEEERE -
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Application of New and Amendments to 2.

International Financial Reporting Standards

(”|FRS(S)”) (Continued)

Impacts on adoption of IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Differences between operating lease commitments as at 31
December 2018, the date immediately preceding the date of
initial application, discounted using the incremental borrowing
rate, and the lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019

are as follows:

R}
it

\i

A& 5] B PR B
(F PR B 75 3R]

DfF 2%

it
i E?ﬂ

g

i
=

J)(

AEEREMEERESERNE165
b=g:0f 2 1¢ )

RZE-—N\F+_A=+—H(BE
REM B8 B)ERIEERBRA
RYRHANKELEHEAER T — 1
F-A-BBANEEREZHED
EEBNT

N

Hﬂ#%‘ i &

RMB’000
AR T T

Operating lease commitments disclosed as RZE-NF+ZA=+—HBKE
at 31 December 2018 B A% & TH B AR 17,156

Less: Short-term leases and other leases with remaining
lease term ended on or before 31 December

2019

B EHAENFSRER T -NF

+ZA=+—Hs=k Z Al JE i Y
HiHE (14)
Add: Extension option reasonably certain to be exercised Al : & I i B TF B #17 #) T & H I {eh 25,914

Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate NZZE-—NF-—HA—HNESEXK

at 1 January 2019 MEBEIR (4,923)
Lease liabilities recognised as at RZE-NF—-—HA—HB®ER

1 January 2019 HEAE 38,133
Analysed as DT IZ
Current portion mENEB 7,001
Non-current portion e BB > 31,182

38,133

On the date of initial application of IFRS 16, the Group has also
used the following practical expedients permitted by the

standard, where applicable:

° the accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease
term of less than 12 months as at 1 January 2019 as

short-term leases.

o the exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement of
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial application.

° the use of hindsight in determining the lease term where
the contract contains options to extend or terminate the

lease.

B RE P BB B 75 s £ RIS 16
BB AEEEERIBR TS K
RIATZENM A FFOERERSL

s BE_Z-AF—A—H #
BHEMNR12EA MK SR
EMEtRE/EHHEE -

e EBAXRXATHBVBEEZEHR
BREFRAEEENTTEN -

e FERREZH W EEF
BEERIKIEHENEZRES
iy B E 1 & BARR o
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[26)

2. Application of New and Amendments to
International Financial Reporting Standards

(”|FRS(S)”) (Continued)

New and revised IFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1
and IAS 8

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018

Insurance Contracts?

Definition of a Business”

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current and Non-current®

Definition of Material’

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform'

Revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

The new standard is currently mandatorily effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021, however in March 2020, IASB deferred

the effective date for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2023

on or after 1 January 2020

The Directors anticipate that the application of new and
amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
Effective for business combination and asset acquisitions for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

results and the financial position of the Group.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over the
investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s returns.

The Group reassess whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control of the subsidiary and cease when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.

= 5T BUR @)
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the
Company. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company.

All'intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods. Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

U Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
customers.

A performance obligation represents a good (or a bundle of
goods) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods that are
substantially same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

° The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o The Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created and
enhanced; or

° The Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct goods.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected on behalf
of third parties, discounts and sales related taxes.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration from the customer.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented.

The Group recognised revenue from the sales of goods
including (i) hair-care products; (i) skin-care products; and (iii)
other household and personal care products.

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at the point when
control of the products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to the customers and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance
of the products.

Right of return

When a contract provides a customer with a right to return the
goods within a specified period, the consideration received from
the customer is variable because the contract allows the
customer to return the products. The Group uses the expected
value method to estimate the goods that will be returned. For
goods expected to be returned, the Group presents a refund
liability as “Refund liabilities” and an asset for the right to recover
products from a customer as “Right to returned goods asset”.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing

Policy applicable on or after 1 January 2019

Definition of a lease

Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease, at inception of the contract or modification
date. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term
leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the
Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease liability
at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. The lease payments are discounted by using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Policy applicable on or after 1 January 2019

(Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease

liability comprise:

° fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate,
initially measured using the index or rate at the

commencement date;

o the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under

residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of purchase options if the lessee is

reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate

the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount

to reflect the lease payments made.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Policy applicable on or after 1 January 2019
(Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before
the commencement date and any initial direct costs, less lease
incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. They are
depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life
of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the
commencement date of the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use
asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment
loss.

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019 (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as prepaid lease payments in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a
finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable loss differs from loss before taxation as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings

For payments of ownership interest of properties which includes
both leasehold land and building elements, the entire property is
presented as property, plant and equipment of the Group when
the payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
leasehold land and building elements.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings
(Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress and immature bearer plants less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Bearer plants are classified as immature until the produce can
be commercially harvested. At that point, immature bearer
plants are reclassified to bearer plants and depreciation
commences. Immature bearer plants are measured at
accumulated costs.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method, and include expenditure incurred in acquiring
the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition.
In case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost
includes an appropriate share of the production overheads
based on normal operating capacity. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and cash
and short-term deposits as defined above.

Deposits with a maturity over three months that are not readily
convertible into known amounts of cash are defined as deposit
with bank in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value, except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on
the classification of the financial assets. Financial assets are
classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets subsequently at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that are credit-impaired on
initial recognition), the effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) excluding expected credit losses (“ECL”), through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective
interest rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future
cash flows, including ECL, to the amortised cost of the debt
instrument on initial recognition.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and effective interest method (Continued)

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss
allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial assets other than purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent
reporting periods, the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the
Group recognises interest income by applying the credit-
adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from initial recognition. The calculation does not
revert to the gross basis even if the credit risk of the financial
asset subsequently improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in
the “Other income” line item (note 8).
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on investments
in debt instruments that are measured at amortised cost. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date, including time value of money where
appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors
operate, as well as consideration of various external sources of
actual and forecast economic information that relate to the
Group’s operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular debtor, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor, or the length of time or the extent to which the fair
value of a financial asset has been less than its amortised
COSt;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if (i) the financial instrument
has a low risk of default, (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and (i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating of “investment
grade” in accordance with the globally understood definition or
if an external rating is not available, the asset has an internal
rating of “performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there is no past due
amounts.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either
of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or

o information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

° it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or
loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as described
above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date and other relevant forward-looking information.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of an
acquirer in a business combination, (i) held-for-trading, or (iii)
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost
(Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
amortised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (capital reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to capital
reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating unit, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgement, estimates and assumptions about the amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
and disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.

Determination of lease term

Lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term. In determining the
lease term for leases that include renewal or termination options
exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the likelihood of
exercising the renewal options taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for
the Group to exercise the option, including favourable terms,
leasehold improvements undertaken and the importance of that
underlying asset to the Group’s operations. The lease term is
reassessed when there is a significant event or significant
change in circumstance that is within the Group’s control. Any
increase or decrease in the lease term would affect the amount
of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised in future
years.
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Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of trade receivables

The impairment of trade receivables is based on assumptions
about ECL. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, bases on the number of days that an individual
receivable is outstanding as well as the Group’s historical
experience, existing market conditions of the industry in which
the debtors operated and forward-looking information at the
end of the reporting period. Changes in these assumptions and
estimates could materially affect the result of the assessment
and it may be necessary to make additional impairment charge
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. At 31 December 2019, the carrying
amount of trade receivables was approximately RMB21,478,000
(2018: RMB30,653,000), net of allowance for impairment of
trade receivables of approximately RMB4,612,000 (2018:
RMB10,590,000). During the year ended 31 December 2019, a
reversal of impairment loss of trade receivables of approximately
RMB4,807,000 (2018: impairment loss: RMB2,196,000) was
recognised.
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Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Allowance of inventories

The Group makes the allowance for inventories based on
assessments of the net realisable value and ageing analysis of
inventories and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
items identified that are no longer suitable for sale. The Group
makes allowance for inventories based on the assessment of
the net realisable value. The management estimates the net
realisable value for inventories based primarily on the latest
invoice prices and current market conditions. As at 31
December 2019, the carrying amount of inventories was
approximately RMB29,382,000 (2018: RMB39,610,000), net of
accumulated allowance of approximately RMB1,889,000 (2018:
RMB4,835,000). During the year ended 31 December 2019,
obsolete inventories written-off and reversal of allowance for
inventories of approximately RMB2,547,000 (2018:
RMB2,421,000) and RMB2,946,000 (2018: allowance for
inventories of RMB2,220,000) were recognised, respectively.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for
certain property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets,
recoverable amount of these assets needs to be determined.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely
estimate fair value because quoted market prices for these
assets may not be readily available. In determining the value in
use, expected cash flows generated by these assets are
discounted to their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to items such as level of revenue and
amount of operating costs and discount rate. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining an amount that is
reasonable approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections of items such as revenue and operating costs.
As at 31 December 2019, the carrying values of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets were approximately
RMB98,305,000 (2018: RMB115,021,000), net of accumulated
impairment losses of approximately RMB113,622,000 (2018:
RMB113,622,000) and RMB30,425,000 (1 January 2019:
RMB38,133,000) respectively. No impairment losses were
recognised for property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets for the current year (2018: nil).
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Critical Accounting Judgement and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated useful life of property, plant and
equipment

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment on a
straight-line basis between the rates of 4% to 50% per annum,
commencing from the date the property, plant and equipment
are available for use. The estimated useful lives that the Group
places the property, plant and equipment into productive use
reflects the Directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment. As at 31 December
2019, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
was approximately RMB98,305,000 (2018: RMB115,021,000).
Depreciation of approximately RMB20,691,000 (2018:
RMB19,787,000) has been recognised for the current year.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses
not yet used and temporary deductible differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be utilised, management
judgement is required to assess the probability of future taxable
profits. Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
assets to be recovered.
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Capital Risk Management

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to
maintain creditor and market confidence and to sustain future
development of the business. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes bank borrowing, net of deposit with bank and bank
balances and cash and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through new share issues as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, amounts due from related parties,
deposit with bank, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, amounts due to related parties and bank
borrowing. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Approximately 2% (2018: 5%) of the Group’s sales is
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity making the sale. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
The Group will monitor foreign exchange exposure and
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objective and
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
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the end of the reporting period are as follows: m
Assets Liabilities
BE =R
2019 2018 2019 2018
—®2-NEF “T-/\F ZB-REF “T-)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT AR¥®TR AR®TT
RMB AR # 99 76 7,907 6,396
HK$ T 423 7 1,730 —
United States dollars =T
(‘UsSD”) (IE&xh 931 50 — —

In the opinion of the Directors, no sensitivity analysis is
presented because the risk is considered insignificant.

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group is exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to bank balances (see
note 22). The management of the Group considered that
a reasonably possible change in interest rates would not
have a material impact to the Group’s result.

REEFMANERL BRAR
BRABITEE B EZ27H

REJE DA o

2 B

RZB-NER_FT-NFT
“A=t-H - AKEEHZ
RERMERRBERRITER
kR e (MiEe2) AEBZ2E
BEERSMNEAREAIEMEN
EP TG UEEEEELEAXN

Sy
rEC
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. Rt T B )

(b) Financial risk management objective and

b) EREREEEREKE

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group is also exposed to
fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate bank
borrowing (see note 26) (2018: fixed rate deposit with
bank (see note 22) and fixed-rate bank borrowing (see
note 26)). In the opinion of the Directors, no sensitivity
analysis is presented because the risk is considered
insignificant.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from trade and
other receivables, amounts due from related parties,
deposit with bank and bank balances and cash. The
carrying amounts of these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.

(#&)
45 B (#)
g ()

RZE-NF+_A=+—
B AEEEHRIAABERNEK
e\ Bz B8 0 8R 77 18 3K (R Y 5£26)
ZE-N\F RITEREE R
K (RMIFE22) A RIRTT 18 5K E
EN R (RHEE26)) - B %A
R/ BMBEZ2IGURED
1 e

15 & & B2

RZE—-—NE+_A=+—
B A&EBz&aEERR (E
RPAFRERBTEERAEE
RHECZTBERMSAEERR
XHMBER)KBESTESHRE
ERZE BRI RmY 2R
[EIRERG

AEEzZEERREEZRRER
B hEMEYHRIE BB
ENRE - ROTEFER - BAHE2 R
ReEBEY SLRBELER
BERRTASEESREEM
BesmEERR-

RBAEREEERR K&
BrEBREEZR—<BMEE
BEETFEERE BHEER
ETHMERER  BAERRKRR
BRHE 17 B DA U (3 280 HRE A
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in IFRS 9 to measure the allowance for
impairment at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the
ECL collectively by using a provision matrix, estimated
based on historical credit loss experience, as well as the
general economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate. In this regard, the Directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

For non trade-related amounts due from related parties,
the Group has assessed whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If
there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the
Group will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime
rather than 12-month ECL.

Management considered that other receivables to be low
credit risk and thus the allowance for impairment
recognised during the year was limited to 12-month ECL.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies or with good
reputation.

6.

T A @)
b) EHRBREEAERBE

(#&)
15 & W B (4)

HRESERZKE AEEE
PR BB BF 7 S 2RI FE 95
R AR = AR E
TEHEEBRXOREER - KA
SERBERELEABALER
UEREBEBALENITENGA
EEMROR IREABEER B¢
ELEIBEEHRAEEEHREER
ke HEFE EEMRAEE
B/ E R ARKEE-

Z’X%.D:F1$Tg%ﬂﬁAﬁEWu

Ko EERBESEEELM-
MREERRBEZE M AE
E AR A A IE121E A &Y

BHEERRKAERAER
B e

IR R e MR BR B 0T SRR Y
FEHBﬁFﬁ A it 1 A R R
REVEEEEIRN12(EA &
BHEREX-

RS T REASEENR
ZRTT HE A BRERFR
KRB ERGEENKBIE
k- BRBEEZEERREA
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. r TR

(b) Financial risk management objective and

b) EREREEEREKE

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout the reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

° internal credit rating

° actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligations

° actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower

° significant changes in the expected performance
and behavior of the borrower, including changes in
the payment status of borrowers in the Group and
changes in the operating results of the borrower.

(#&)

15 & W B (4)

AEEEZREVNIHRAEER
EHHR A BEM M&E@ﬂﬁ
SHE FERREORER

ERM- RABEER AIE'EE
BMEEN AEEKEEAER
TEHBELENNRREYLS
BRARBEEZONEBRET
- EREBAAN AEH
M FFMEHATIEIEE B - 55 5l
AT UATHERZ:

o  AEMEAFAR

s FHEHEHEBARITERS
E’]ﬁuﬁkﬁkiﬁ L E
PREEMMER M=
BN B R A E A

e EBAEZERTHNER
BN EREL -

s BEBAEHEREMITAN
BEXEL BREBAL
SRR MR RN E(
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. m TR
(b) Financial risk management objective and b) tHEAKEEEEERBEE
policies (Continued) (#8)
Credit risk (Continued) EE RS (1)
The Group’s exposure to credit risk EEEEERR FE
The Group’s current credit risk grading framework AREBRFENEERKTRIE
comprises the following categories: BOTHIER
Category Description Basis for recognising ECL
2E ot BEEHCEBENEE
Performing For financial assets where there has low risk  12-month ECL
of default or has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and that are not credit-impaired (refer to as
Stage 1)
B1T REHBFZENRRE BV KEER 12E@AEBEEERE
NREERREBEEZEMERELERF
EREERERIZE)
Doubtful For financial assets where there has been a  Lifetime ECL — not credit-
significant increase in credit risk since initial impaired
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
(refer to as Stage 2)
R BR NEEFEHIIBRIBEREERR ERPRHEEEHE -
Qmﬁ%wMX@EﬁMM$%$E% ARELEFEERE
BEERBER22%E)
Default Financial assets are assessed as credit Lifetime ECL — credit impaired
impaired when one or more events that have
a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred (refer
to as Stage 3)
E 4 RNERENEBFTRWEN EEME ERHAEHEERBE -
BRTAHUEECELAGEREERE CDEAEERE
32 %)
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor ~ Amount is written off
is in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery
iy ERBRTEBAONGEREVNBERALR FHESEDME

SER AR LI E A BRI
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 6. /T A
(b) Financial risk management objective and b EHREABEEREEERBEE
policies (Continued) (#8)
Credit risk (Continued) EERE(#E)
The Group’s exposure to credit risk (Continued) EFEEREE T WEE)
The table below details the credit quality of the Group’s TERXTFWNTAERESHEEE
financial assets as well as the Group’s maximum exposure FEEMAEEEARE 2%
to credit risk by credit risk rating grades. FERRERTICEERR -
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Gross Gross
Internal 12-month or lifetime carrying Loss Net carrying carrying Loss  Net carrying
Notes credit rating ECL amount  allowance amount amount allowance amount
R 128A =% REEE fREEE
Mt AR EREEREERA mE  HEEE EREEE #E RERE  REFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR%TR AR%®Tn ARETT ARBTT ARETT
Trade receivables 21 Note Lifetime ECL (not credit 26,090 (4,612) 21,478 41,243 (10,590 30,653
impaired)
E AR oy FERABREDREESR
(REEEERE)
Amounts due from  34(a) Performing  12-month ECL 343 - 343 94 — 94
related parties
JE A R R 77 56 12EARBEEER
Other receivables 21 Performing  12-month ECL 421 - 421 712 — 712
Hofl e YR B1T 12@AEREEEAR
Deposit with bank 22 Performing 12-month ECL - - - 20,000 — 20,000
FATER fB17 12EARBEEER
Bank balances 22 Performing  12-month ECL 102,195 - 102,195 65,483 — 65,483
RITHE B17 12@AEREEEAR
129,049 (4,612) 124,437 127,532 (10,590) 116,942

Note: The Group has applied simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Details are set out in note 21.

M : ARBECEABCOBEREBRE
EAOE R EBEMPEMEEES
BTHRERSE - F BN T
21 -
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objective and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
The Group’s exposure to credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s concentration of
credit risk by geographical location is mainly in the PRC,
which accounted for 98% (2018: 96%) of the total trade
receivables.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has concentration of
credit risk, as 23% (2018: 7%) of the total trade
receivables, which was due from the Group’s five largest
customers.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by
collateral or other credit enhancements.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when they fall due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses
or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group ensures that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash on demand to meet its liquidity requirement in the
short and longer term; this excludes the potential impact
of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be
predicted, such as natural disasters.

6.

T A @)
b) EHRBREEAERBE

(#&)

15 & W B (4)
EEEERERZ BKE(B)
$E@Emﬁﬁ§ﬂ“'ﬁﬁ
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ST EERRPER BT
—n¢+ A=+—8 &8
D REUBR R ABFEHI8% (— T —
J\UEE £ 96%) °
R-_ZE—NFF+_A=+—

B AEERAEFPE&EFREE
BB EMNE S EWRAE23%
(:§—1\¢ C7%) e
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B R B R N R B R TE 1T
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 0.

(b) Financial risk management objective and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities
and lease liabilities. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities and
lease liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates are
based on the agreed repayment dates. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.

On demand

or within
one year 2-5 years
&R —ERE

RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTRE

i =N

b) EREREEEREKE

(#&)
e B0 1 R B (#8)

TRFANAKREZHRITES R
BEMEHERBZNBRENS
ReZRIDENRAKNEEAE D
XNMZRFAHYRESRA
BZRFBRAEREDE - &
wIFMEERBEMEERRE
ZEBMEUBEEEAHAE
R-XFPEREMNERASRS

2=
JILEE °

Total

undiscounted Carrying

Over 5 years cash flows amount
TR

BALE BeR#AE REEE
RMB'000 RMB'O00  RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTRT

At 31 December2019 R=-ZE—NE

+=ZR=t-H
Non-derivative financial ¥fi£4mAE
liabilities
Trade and other payables & 5 & H i & +f
HIE 72,443 - - 72,443 72,443
Amounts due to related & B B 7 2B
parties 47 — — 47 47
Bank borrowing RITER 9,672 - - 9,672 9,650
82,162 - - 82,162 82,140
Lease liabilities HEAE 8,668 25,315 390 34,373 31,132
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6. Financial Instruments (Continued) 0.

(b) Financial risk management objective and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Gl =R
b) tHEAKEEEEERBEE
(#8)

e B0 1 R B (#5)

Total
undiscounted
cash flows due

on demand or Carrying
within one year amount
KIFRBEH
—FREER
BEREHGT BREE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT AR®TE

At 31 December 2018 R-ZEB-NF+=ZA=
+—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities kTESRERS
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk HAth e3R8 73,964 73,964
Amounts due to related parties FEAST Fﬁﬂ 7 A 2,488 2,488
Bank borrowing RITER 12,868 12,550
89,320 89,002

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
current financial assets and current financial liabilities
recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2019 and 2018
approximate their fair values due to the short maturities.

(c) ULanREHEZEMIR

ARBIEFEAS BREAY
BREARDEBREER NS
TREEEN_ZT-NEFRZ
E-N\E+-_A=+—HEH
AEE - HEREEIURA
ffBME -
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Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods, net of
discounts and sales related taxes. An analysis of the Group’s
revenue for the year is as follows.

SXBERDHER

EEBEHEMGKITMMEE LR
TERNBEERA SEFEZER
DA

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AR® T T
Revenue from contracts with customers 7t B B2 Bt S 3R & X B 155
within the scope of IFRS 15 HEEAEFNEHKWA
Disaggregated by major products BETEERDHE
Manufacturing and sales of the household 5K i & A #3E B 4 HY
and personal care products HEEMBEE
Hair-care products EEEm 234,142 267,398
Skin-care products EEE M 1,798 4,355
Other household and personal care HEMRA LG AZEREM®R
products 22,218 22,169
258,158 293,922
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with BREVIBEAMERESRNYE
customers by timing of recognition
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBT T
Timing of revenue recognition W A BR B B S
At a point in time H— R, 258,158 293,922

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods delivered. The Directors
have chosen to organise the Group around differences in
products. The segments are managed separately as each
operating segment offers different products which require
different production information to formulate different strategies.

BOMRERMEFBEDMRIR  AE
ERERRE ADARARAZHTE
EREZAB - BERFARNER
MBEL - TEELRAREEERER
EmZR2KABAEE - TN E=
REEBRSOE®DRSHMN KEER
BEELEMREER -
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7. Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by timing of recognition (Continued)

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments are as follows:
o Hair-care products

o Skin-care products

° Other household and personal care products

Operating segment including manufacture and sale of other
household and personal care products have been aggregated
into a single reporting segment after taking into account that
none of which are of a sufficient size to be reported separately.

The CODM is provided with segment information concerning
segment revenue and result. No analysis of segment assets or
segment liabilities is presented as they are not regularly
provided to the CODM.

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable and operating segments.

Hair-care products Skin-care products
EEEm EEEM
2019 2018 2019

EXRERDBER @

BanlAnERERS 8 (#)

AEBZABRENEEDEA
s ®EEEM
s ®EEEM
s HMXAREAZEEREMR

K BB FE H M 5K BE A A &

EMNEEMBEE £ F ‘J/xﬁ
—REEHREND A AERRS
® BEYAR—RHEENmES -

FTEBERARETCHERESES
BWAMDHXEENEL AR
HEEMNSHBEEETEEHM
FTEEERRERE AL EY
I EIT DA

SMERBRERR

AT EAREEIZ A HE D RUA K
K@M

Other household and
personal care products Total
HttRAR
BAZEER ast
2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

“®-7E -T-\F SR-AE T-N\F SR-AF “T-N\F SR-AF SFNE

RMB'000 RVMB'000  RMB’000

RVMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000

ARBTRE ARETR ARETR ARETL ARBTR ARETL ARMTRT ARETR

Sales to external customers HERINBRP 234,142 267,398 1,798 4,355 22,218 22,169 258,158 293,922
Segment (loss)/profit D (EE)/BH (5,179) 10,338 9% 0 (7,885) (10,237) (12,970) 191
Bank interest income BITFEHA 514 448
Other income Hig A 2,248 2,217
Corporate and other unallocated &R H 2 £t

expenses X (4,371) (3,676)
Finance costs BEER (585) (376)
Loss before taxation BATEE (15,164) (1,196)
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Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment results represent the profit earned by/(loss) from each
segment without allocation of bank interest income, gain on
sales of scrap materials, government grants, net foreign
exchange losses/(gains), central administrative costs, directors’
emoluments and interest on bank borrowing. This is the
measure reported to the executive directors of the Company for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance

7.

EEERTEHBER @

SEWMERERER (W)

EERBFANEFRRERNEEAE
B ST 3 4 i 0 & 5 B AR o o &
%%ﬁ%tﬂ“*ﬁﬁ% & A B/ (8
8) AEERTHE HﬁU\ BB R
R ey U et~ BT A B R IE 1B K/
(Was) ~ RREEA - T FFZHMA
RITERAE - WIIRERDE K
RAFEMAARRAR ZHTEER
EZFERA -

]}ﬂ]

m

assessment.
Upon application of IFRS 16, depreciation of right-of-use assets 1B BB B 75 sR &5 2 A6k - H 2
and interest on lease liabilities are now included in the measure —E-AF+_A=+—HIEFE
of segment result during the year ended 31 December 2019. CFHEEENITEMNMHESE
Comparative information is not restated. E!’J FEBREBREESD 'E‘ HROGE
FoNBEMREBRER -
Other segment information Htta8EHE
Other household and
Hair-care products Skin-care products personal care products Total
HtRAR
BEER BEER BAREER Bt
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-NF -\ ZEB-hE —E-\§ ZE-hfE —T-\f ZEB-nfF —T-)F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT AR¥ETR ARBTT ARETR ARET:R
Amounts included in the measure 3t &% ¥4 R
of segment results B ARE
Additions to property, plant and W% BERXEEN
equipment 3,833 2,178 29 48 364 194 4,226 2,420
Depreciation of property, plantand 9% - BiE L& BT E
equipment 18,766 17,797 144 398 1,781 1,592 20,691 19,787
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ (F REZEH & 6,91 - 54 - 663 - 7,708 -
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEFE 1,525 - 12 - 145 - 1,682 -
Loss on disposals of property, plant R EWE - HE&&ZE
and equipment 0B =S 165 33 1 1 16 3 182 37
Write-off of property, plant and BENE BERRE
equipment HEX% 2 - - - - - 2 -
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ (REBXER)/FEER
impairment loss recognised in AERANE SRKE
respect of trade receivables FAERX (4,340) 1,998 (33) 33 (434) 165 (4,807) 2,196
(Reversal of allowance for inventories)/ 77 & i {& (1 %) /3t 12
allowance for inventories (2,672) 2,018 (20) 33 (254) 169 (2,946) 2,220
Obsolete inventories written-off BHREERE 2,310 2,203 18 36 219 182 2,547 2,421
Amounts regularly provided to the TR HATEELR
CODM but not included in the RENSE BFE
measure of segment results BEROBEEN
iE
Interest on bank borrowing BIEFFE - - - - - - 585 376
Bank interest income BATR S YA - - - = - (514) (448)
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Revenue and Segment Information (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC (country
of domicile) and Hong Kong.

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the goods delivered. The geographical location of the
non-current assets is based on the physical location of the
assets, in the case of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets.

7. EXBERDEE

HEREH

AEBREEBETIESPRERE G

EBER)MES -

EPFHMESRDBREINE @
NEBET FRBEEMMIEME
DREBEEERMAECE(NEY
X BENRBLERAREE) ME

JE ©

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REMBEFHBA FRBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
“B-NF -T-N\F ZB-hfE -T-)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T AR®T R ARETTT
The PRC (country of A B (FTEBER)
domicile) 255,134 286,832 127,747 113,918
Hong Kong BB 2,336 3,310 983 1,103
Singapore IR - 1,704 = —
Thailand B 236 858 - —
Malaysia SR i 452 1,218 — —
Total @Et 258,158 293,922 128,730 115,021
Information about major customers FTEEEFEHE

Details of the customer contributing over 10% of total revenue
of the Group are as follows:

HAEEERBEBI0REXRENE

FRERAIRMT

2019 2018
—E-hE CZ—E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARE&ET T
Customer A* ZEA* 30,157 N/A*

Revenue from segment of hair-care products

The corresponding revenue does not contribute over 10% of total revenue of
the Group.

KERD BB EE R IRA

** HREMEXETERHRAEEBEBI10%H

BEE
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Other Income 8. HthUr A
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET AR T T
Bank interest income R|ITH B U A 514 448
Gain on sales of scrap materials BB R = 845 1,100
Government grants (note (a)) BT Bh & (MY 5% (@) 1,403 1,117
Reversal of over provision of HihEN RN AEBEETIE
other payables 2 [o] B - 179
Others = 268 270
3,030 3,114
Note: B 5E -
() Included in the amount of government grants recognised during the year ended (@) Bz Z-hAhF+-_A=1+—HItHF

31 December 2019 of approximately RMB1,403,000 (2018: RMB1,117,000)
were received from the PRC government in respect of certain research
projects, electronic shopping platform projects and export encourage scheme,
the relevant granting criteria for which have been fulfiled and were immediately
recognised as other income for both years.

ERN SGBNEDSENAEARE
1,408,000 ( =& — \NF: H AR K
1,117,0007T) * % & E 2+ BB R
FLCHTIRIE B E BB R E M B R - I
RZMEEEERERBEMEA -

Finance Costs 9. MIKEH
2019 2018
—B-hAE —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR®ET T

Interest on: &

Bank borrowing BITER 585 376
Lease liabilities HEEE 1,682 —

2,267 376
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10. Income Tax Credit

10. PS5 %i = 5

2019 2018
—B-hFE —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR%®FTr

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) FRCEMSHE(EEMERD
— Current year —KrFEE 6 -
— Over provision in prior years (note (d))  — LA BT 4F E #A 58 &4 (M35 (d)) (9,070) —
(9,064) —

(@  Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “PRC
EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the PRC EIT
Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January

2008 onwards.

Pursuant to circular issued by Ministry of Finance and
National Tax Bureau on 17 January 2019, the small-
scaled minimal profit enterprise with an annual taxable
income below RMB1,000,000 (RMB1,000,000 included)
is entitled to a preferential tax treatment of 75% exemption
of taxable income and application of income tax rate as
20% from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021. Certain
PRC subsidiaries of the Group were qualified during the

year.

The PRC EIT Law allows enterprises to apply for the
certificates of “High and New Technology Enterprise”
(“HNTE”) which entitles the qualified companies to a
preferential income tax rate of 15%. Bawang (Guangzhou)
Co., Ltd. (“Bawang Guangzhou”), a PRC subsidiary of the
Group, was qualified as a HNTE since 2009. However,
Bawang Guangzhou did not have any assessable profits
subject to EIT for the years ended 31 December 2019 and

2018.

REFEECEMGBRA(EE
IRHEDREEMGREER
B R B - 7 &= B B 2 B Y R
FE-ZTTNE-F—HER
25% ©

BE-_ZE—hLhF—A+E8H
BRBMBERRE BB FhE
W5 T 1S 58 A R % 1,000,000 7T
(& AR #1,000,0007T) LA T H
NI R T —NEF
—A—HE-_ZE-_—%+=H
=+t EXEMARAEE
75% % B B K 20% H) F Uk B
B AEBRAELBEARNTAA
REEIRBZER-

REMERGERERTEER
FEAEMEE(eFHEME
¥DEE MEBSZEENG
¥ U ZEE15%HEER K -
EFEXT(BEMN)ERRABTHELE
MDEBZZZFZNFREERER
Mt E R BHEZ
TE-NFrR-_E—-N\F+=H
=+—HEFE - FTEEML
RERMBHMEERMSHZ
FEERB ) o
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10. Income Tax Credit (Continued)

10. FT 18

(b)  No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided (o)
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 as the
Group did not have any assessable profits subject to
Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended 31 December

2019 and 2018.

(¢) Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman (©)

Islands and the BVI,

the Group is not subject to any

income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

(d) Based on the facts and circumstances and an (d)
independent tax consultant report obtained by the
Directors in current year, the Group concluded that there
is an over provision of EIT in prior years and credited in
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss

S % B £ @)

BE_T-hhFR-ZE-N\F
TZR=+—-HBLFE AL

B2 B IR BASBANEBMRE
M 2 FE AR Wi A BT LA 3 8 &1

REBFEH -

BRERSHENABRIES
B A5 B K A $’§lﬂ/,\7,%
+:ﬂ£+-EIJJ:¢F§?§MWEﬁ
SEHENRBELBESHNEM
TiIE o

ENFEERBRAULREEME
15 B9 — {7 98 32 T 75 B ] 75 3R e
T ASELOBARNFEFE
ﬁﬁ%%¢imﬁﬁﬂﬁ*ﬁ
BEFABE-_T-AF+=
A=+—BFENB=mEH -

FARBERGEEBER ZHATER

before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss AR -
and other comprehensive income as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBT T
Loss before taxation TATE1E (15,164) (1,196)
Tax calculated at the domestic income tax 3R ZN #h FT 15 Fi fd K 25% 5+ &~
rate of 25% (2018: 25%) MB(ZZT—N\F :25%) (3,791) (299)
Effect of different tax rates of entities REMBEER %é‘é &2 A
operating in other jurisdictions MEZHETE 2,951 710
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TAMBERZRIETE
tax purpose 2,905 351
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax DEGRRBAZRIETE
purpose (4,171) (286)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERMBEERB BRI E 5,427 2,343
Income tax on concessionary rate BEMEMEM (7) -
Utilisation of deductible temporary E) A A 4R H0 MY oK TSR Y ET B
differences not recognised =R (3,308) (2,819)
Over provision in prior years VAR E HBRE B R (9,070) —
Income tax credit for the year FE PTG E B (9,064) —
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10. Income Tax Credit (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has unused estimated tax
losses of approximately RMB327,667,000 (2018:
RMB293,284,000) and RMB35,161,000 (2018:
RMB33,546,000) for certain subsidiaries in the PRC and Hong
Kong respectively. The tax losses incurred by the subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC (except for HNTE) will expire in five
years from the year in which the loss originated, while the ones
incurred by the subsidiaries in Hong Kong will not expire under
current tax legislation in Hong Kong. With effective from 1
January 2018, the tax losses incurred by HNTE will expire in ten
years from the year in which the loss originated. No tax losses
have expired during the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018. No deferred tax asset had been recognised as at 31
December 2019 and 2018 in respect of the estimated tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of approximately RMB363,821,000 (2018:
RMB385,874,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

10. PP 15 % B # (@)

HE_ZT—-—hLF+=A=+—8"
EEETFERNBNEENL D FA
AIARFERAMGEE KBRS D
A AR 327,667,000 ( = F — N\
F . AR #293,284,0007T) F1 A R
35,161,000 c(ZFE— N\F: AR
33,546,0007T ) ° £ 1 B 3% A 5 it &9
FRA (SR ERN TEE
MMEEL BEFEBEEZABLF
AE®R: MEEBEMAO T RR AT
BAEMBMBEL BEREBERTH
WMEER  TE2Em - #_ZF—N
F-—A—HR sHBEBEGCEESE
MBEKERSEEELE FRI10F
RNEH - BE-_ZFT—LhEFMN_F—
NF+_A=Z+—BILFER %
EEMPRWBEBLAE LB BEZ
E-NFN_E-NF+=_A=+
—H - BRARRFE R T A IE A
B HAEREEREEENTER
FRUR B K -

HE_ZT—hhF+=-A=+—8H"
AREBANBREEEEZEEHNARE
363,821,000t (ZE—N\F : AR™
385,874,0007T) ° AR N K AJBE B FE
TR0 F A] AR 2R 4K 40 7] K 0 A AR
ZR AR ERCEMEEERERHE
AENEEEE=ESR -
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11. Loss for the Year

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

1. FREE

FABEZME/GIA) THIER

2019 2018
—EBE-hE —ZT—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTR AR®BTT
Auditor’s remuneration % R B & 1,100 1,040
Cost of inventories recognised as HRERI ZEERKAK
an expense (note (a)) (M 5E (@) 143,536 161,784
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - -BMEMREITE
equipment 20,691 19,787
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 7,708 —
Loss on disposals of property, plant and REME BWERKZENEX
equipment 182 37
Write-off of property, plant and equipment  $REM - ME L& G 2 —
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) PE H Esia/ (W) F 58 242 (845)
Research and development costs VR AR 23K R
recognised as an expense 14,323 12,789
Staff costs (note (b)) & B A (M 5% (b)) 54,721 47,654
(Reversal of allowance for inventories)/ (FEKEBEEBZOR)/FHiE
allowance for inventories (included incost T EMKBEE(BIETRR
of inventories recognised as an expense) ABBERNFEERAS) (2,946) 2,220
Obsolete inventories written-off (included in 1 B1 17 &5 R & (B IEE 1R A
cost of inventories recognised as BRAMNGTEXAY)
an expense) 2,547 2,421
Notes: Bt 5t
(@) Cost of inventories recognised as an expense included depreciation of (@) WRERAIZHEEXRABREDNE  BE

property, plant and equipment, depreciation of right-of-use assets and staff
costs of approximately RMB16,954,000 (2018: RMB18,052,000),
RMB7,708,000 (2018: nil) and RMB17,002,000 (2018: RMB13,875,000)
respectively. The amounts were also included in the respective amounts
disclosed above.

(b) Staff costs included redundancy costs of RMB1,154,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: RMB2,033,000).

BETE FREEAENEREBK
A5 R4 B A RA16,954,0007T (= F —
NNEF - ) AR #18,052,0007T) « AR
7,708,000 (ZF— NF: £) RHAR
#17,002,000c( = — NF: HARKE
13,875,0007T) LA L& BHE DRI EE
AEBBESREF -

(o) BE_Z—hhE+_A=+—RBILFE-
EENARIEENREROARE1,154,000
T(ZE—N\F : £y AR®2,033,0007T) °
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12.

13.

Staff Costs 12.

B’& R A
2019 2018
—2-nE —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTT

Staff costs (including directors’ and chief BERKN(BREFLERS

=

executive’s emoluments) comprise: TBAERNEZSME) :
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EREREAR 49,459 42,976
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes :E k1@ ) 5+ 21 £ =&
(note 33) (Mg 3E33) 4,108 2,645
Termination benefits R BT 1,154 2,033
54,721 47,654
Dividends 13. R E

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: nil), nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2018: nil).

BE_ZT-NFt+-_A=+—HL
FREYERNSIBEREMRE(ZZ
—N\F:E) B2HRMERITESR
RAEMBRE(ZT—\F &) -
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14. Loss Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

14. BRE#E

RATEE AR 2 SRR RS
O AR B B AR B LA R B R

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR®TE

Loss B8
Loss for the year attributable to owners of AT E AR AR HEAE AEE
the Company for the purpose of basic JEEElRERR B EEIE
and diluted loss per share K& 18 (6,100) (1,196)
2019 2018
—E-hF ZE-N\F
’000 000
TR T
Number of shares g2 §E|
Weighted average number of ordinary shares F8 LA 5 & & I B 7N &5 18 4
for the purpose of basic loss per share EFHEERHE 3,162,289 3,161,811
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: #5582 L@ IR A &7
Share options HA N/A N/A
Weighted average number of ordinary shares LA & A% #58 Ei8 4 B B &9
for the purpose of diluted loss per share niEFEEBRE 3,162,289 3,161,811

Diluted loss per share was the same as the basic loss per share
as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding
during the year ended 31 December 2019. For the year ended
31 December 2018, the computation of diluted loss per share
did not assume the exercise of the Company’s share options
because their exercise would result in a decrease in loss per
share.

HRERE-T-AF+_A=1
—HIEFEREBENEEL AR
BECAERBEEEEEGRE
REEER -BE-_T—N\F+ =
A=T—RALFE BEERER
M ERAEREARKREMENTT
F ARTEREHESSERE
P 5 1R R >
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15. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 15. EEZERESTHAEM S

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six (2018: six) BN ENASAZ(ZE—/)\F: X
directors and the chief executive were as follows: ZIEENESTHRAE ZHME
T
For the year ended 31 December 2019 gFF_—_E—nhE+=-A=+—H
ILFE
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
HTES FUTES
Mr. CHEN
Mr. CHEN Zheng He
Qiyuan (Chief Mr. WONG Dr. NGAIWai Mr. CHEUNG
(Chairman) Executive) Sin Yung Fung Kin Wing  Dr. WANG Qi Total
REELE
BRBR % & (BE
(X&) HTE) EERLE HREBELT RERLE IEEL Ch

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARWTR ARETR AR®TR AREBTR ARWTR

Emoluments paid or
receivable in respect
of a person’s
services as a
director, whether of
the Company or its
subsidiaries

Fees

Emoluments paid or
receivable in respect
of director’s other
services in
connection with the
management of the
affairs of the
Company and its
subsidiaries

Other emoluments
Salaries
Contributions to

retirement benefits
schemes

FRAHENBLR
NEZRERE
éﬁﬁﬁ”&ﬂ’m

e - - - 263 176 176 615

ENCE R
MESHRAER
HtEHHRB X
NHEHNHE

Ete
He - R = 127 1,056 = = - 1,183
BB E

#HR

Total emoluments

A#E = 133 1,072 263 176 176 1,820
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15. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Executive directors

B8R

5. ZEZRESTHRAEME

(%)

B8EXE—_FT—-/\¥+=-A=+—H
12 3

Independent non-executive directors

FROTES

Mr. CHEN Mr. CHEN
Qiyuan  Zheng He (Chief  Mr. WONG Sin

(Chairman) Executive) Yung
RIEBEE
R BRI 5 £ (B

(£7) #i17E) RERRL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTL ARETR

Dr.NGAIWai  Mr. CHEUNG
Fung KinWing ~ Dr. WANG Qi Total

REEEL  RESKL IBEL At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRL  ARETI }\E(Mf(r‘; ARETR
note (g,

(@)

Emoluments paid or Y UN
receivable inrespect Y R
of a person’s THHERN
services as a k2
director, whether of
the Company or its
subsidiaries

Fees we - - -

Emoluments paid or b ON
receivable in respect i}
of director’s other H
services in i
connection with the
management of the
affairs of the
Company and its
subsidiaries
Other emoluments HivBie
Salaries e RE - 127 1,058
Contributions to RINEFIE
retirement benefits 5%
schemes - 6 16

251 167 125 543

- - - 1,185

Total emoluments AiEe - 133 1,074

251 167 125 1,750

Note:

() Appointed on 17 April 2018.

There was no discretionary bonus provided to the Directors for
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Mr. CHEN Zheng He is also the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above included those for
services rendered by him as the chief executive.

Neither the chief executive of the Company nor any of the
Directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments in the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

GEE
@ BEER-T—N\FHA+EELHR-

RZEBE—NFNM_ZT—-—NF+=A
—t+t—BESEBHRHHEENDL -

REBEEEERRFERRIT
B LB HFMEREEES
FRTENREGME -

BE-_ZT-NFt+-_A=+—HL
FE ASEESESERRTESTN
ZRIREREEAME(ZF N
FE) -
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16. Employees’ Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
one (2018: four) was Directors whose emolument is included in
the disclosures in note 15 above. The emoluments of the
remaining four (2018: one) individual were as follows:

16. & & %7 N

TfuseFMALTH  —L(ZF—
NF:- O REF EHFMNA L
16K E - AEMIUE(ZF—
NF - — ) FMATFBF BN
o

2019 2018
—E-NF —EF-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETE

Salaries, allowances and benefits e ERERER 1,651 169
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes & K 18 F1) 5 2 £ 2k 160 8
1,811 177

Their emoluments were all within nil to HK$1,000,000,
equivalent to approximately RMB880,000 (2018: equivalent to
approximately RMB882,000).

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals (including Directors and employees) or other
Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office.

EH B2 2N T = &= %5 1,000,000
TR EN AR ESS0,000T (==
— N\F: K& E R AR 882,000
JC) ©

REBEE-_ZE-NFR-F-N\FT+
“THA=t-HLEFEHHE A&E
TERNHE FTARERLR RS
MAL(BEREERER) HEME
E ERBBENMAXRNMEREE
R RE)SAF RBERL A E -
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment

17. 9% - BERRE

Office Immature
Land and Leasehold Motor equipment Display Bearer bearer Construction
buildings Machinery improvements  vehicles and others  furniture plants plants in progress Total
B | fEHE BAE FHRAK
BEY BE BRXE EHIA REREM BREE £EMEY LEMEYD HEIR @t
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTRE ARBTL ARETR ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARKTT ARETT
COoSsT BA
At 1 January 2018 RZF-NE—A—H 5,494 115,722 180,081 11,787 20,102 937 43 532 39,720 374,418
Exchange realignment ERAE - - - 354 - - - - - 354
Additions NE - 97 378 466 1,221 - - 263 — 2,420
Disposals HE - (89) - (461) (18) - - - (16) (584)
Transfer from construction ~ E & BRI
in progress - 10,338 18,383 - 518 - - - (29,239 -
At31December 2018and R =2 —\&
1 January 2019 +-A=t-B}
—ZE-NE
—A—H 5,494 126,068 198,837 12,146 21,823 937 43 795 10,465 376,608
Exchange realignment [E 5§, A% - - - 173 - - - - - 173
Additions NE - 55 2,861 - 968 - - 342 - 4,226
Disposals ik - (1,343) - (70) (59) - - - - (1472)
Write off wE - - - - (24) - - - - (24)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+-A=+-H 5,494 124,780 201,698 12,249 22,708 937 43 1,137 10,465 379,511
ACCUMULATED REHE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-N\F-A—H 1,814 77,040 98,518 10,987 17,796 856 21 - 34,983 242,015
Exchange realignment EXRE - - - 294 - - - - - 294
Depreciation provided for R E & &
the year 247 2,677 16,089 82 690 - 2 - - 19,787
Eliminated on disposals HERHHE - (80) - (415) (14) - - - - (509)
Transfer from construction HEBFER IR
in progress - 3,585 21,045 - 388 - - - (25,018) -
At 31 December 2018and R -F—\F
1 January 2019 +=-A=+-BRk
ZE-NE
—A—H 2,061 83,222 135,652 10,948 18,860 856 23 - 9,965 261,587
Exchange realignment EERE - - - 149 - - - - - 149
Depreciation provided for £ AT E &
the year 247 2,253 17,055 437 697 - 2 — — 20,691
Eliminated on disposals HERHHE - (1,083) - 63) (53) - - - - (1,199
Write off HEE - - - - 22) - - - - 22)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+-A=t-H 2,308 84,392 162,707 11,471 19,482 856 25 - 9,965 281,206
CARRYING VALUES &
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NE
+-A=+-H 3,186 40,388 48,991 778 3,226 81 18 1,137 500 98,305
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-A=+-H 3,433 42,846 63,185 1,198 2,963 81 20 795 500 115,021
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17.

18.

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

LLand and buildings

T AR EY)
Machinery

W 2E

Leasehold improvements
KEHENR T H
Motor vehicles

EHITHE

Office equipment and others
W R S EA
Display furniture

R EME

Bearer plants

EEMNEEY

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress and immature bearer plants until it is substantially
completed and ready for its intended use. Upon completion and
commissioning for operation, depreciation will be provided at
the appropriate rates specified above.

17. % - BE RFRE @)

MESERNE  BERRENMK
A BAALESHAEEME)
AT BT E AT PR B R B A8 A
o

Over the shorter of term of the lease or 20 years
T EAE A2 5 20 FF

15 years

154

Over the shorter of term of the lease or 10 years
THEAER 104

5-8 years

5-84F

5 years

5%

2 years

24

3-25 years

3-25%F

EREIRRTRANEYEE T
RITE BEEEEEEE LRI
VEDAERRE - EETT LK
NEER B2 EXPEEE =X
FtaFHRITE -

Leases 18. HE
() Right-of-use assets (i) FHESE
As at As at
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
R=ZB-h#F R=ZB-I#F
+=-—HA=+—H —H—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T T AR T T
Buildings EEY) 30,425 38,133

The Group has lease arrangements for buildings. The
lease terms are generally ranged from one to thirty years.
None of the leases include variable lease payments.

AEBERZEMWHEL -
HEHR -—KRS/1FE30F-
ELHENIERAIZENEE
NN
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18. Leases (Continued)

18. HHE @)

(i) Lease liabilities () HEARE
As at As at
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
RZE—-NE RZIE—NE&E
+=ZHA=+—H —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT ARBEFTT
Non-current IERED 23,802 31,132
Current Vi) 7,330 7,001
31,132 38,133
As at
31 December
2019
R-ZB—-RE
+=-ZA=+—H
RMB’000
ARBEFTT
Within one year —F R 7,330
After one year but within two years —FEEMEUR 7,690
After two years but within five years WMENLNERFUANAN 15,830
After five years AFEU 282
31,132
Less: amount due for settlement B 12 RNEMNZFEBEBGIRAB ARG
within 12 months (shown BET)
under current liabilities) (7,330)
Amount due for settlement after 1218 A & B 85 A9 FE {5 18
12 months 23,802
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18.

19.

Leases (Continued)

(ili) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

18. & &)
(iii) MRREREZEN

2019
—E-NEF
RMB’000
AREFTT
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEENE 7,708
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBEBEMNEX N 1,682
Expenses relating to short-term leases %2 EffA S (BRI & A 56
(iv) Others (iv) Hftt

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the total cash
outflow for leases amount to approximately

BE-T-NE+-A=+—
ALEER BENRSE

RMBS8,739,000. BRI R ANR%8,739,0007T °

Inventories 19. 7 &

2019 2018

—E-NEFE —T-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Raw materials R ¥ 11,771 11,781

Work-in-progress pa-Che 2,244 3,105

Finished goods RUAK oA 6,923 12,713

Packing materials and consumable goods % #1 ¥ [z 34 7% @ 8,444 12,011

29,382 39,610

During the year ended 31 December 2019, certain slow-moving
inventories, of which allowance was made previously over their
net realisable values, were consumed and/or sold as scrap
materials. As a result, a reversal of allowances for inventories of
approximately RMB2,946,000 (2018: nil) had been recognised
and included in cost of sales.

BE_T-NFT-_A=1t—HL
FEA - KL HEESF (B P H AR
BEBBEB T EMOAERFE) W
HREM/ HERBEREE - Bt
#NE®2,946,0007T (ZF — )\ 4 -
B)NFEREEGD RERR LA
AT ASHER R o
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20. Right to Returned Goods Asset 20. REIEY) 2 #ER
2019 2018
—B-hEFE —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

21.

ARBTRT ARBTT

Right to returned goods asset REIEY 2 HEF 2,319 2,392
The right to returned goods asset represents the Group’s right REEENENRERANEBREG#R
to recover products from customers where customers exercise BEAEBERERRITHEREERN
their right of return under the Group’s returns policy. The Group ERPNOEDR ZEEBFNAHEBEE
uses its accumulated historical experience to estimate the HWFES&S  FMBRBEERGET R
number of returns on a portfolio level using the expected value REEMHE -

method.

Trade and Other Receivables

21. EG R EMEIWFIE

2019 2018
—E-hAE —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Receivables within the scope of IFRS 15

HEERME RS ERE155 S E

at amortised cost comprise: AR FE U AR SR SR P AN B 5

Trade receivables B 5 EWH 26,090 41,243

Less: allowance for impairment of trade W B S EWH IR EEE
receivables (4,612) (10,590)
21,478 30,653
Prepayment for purchase of raw materials & B R #1 ¥} 78 1~ 7% 2,103 2,888
Other prepayments HEMIERIE 1,940 1,589
Non-income tax receivables JEFT 15 B IE L FX 111 193
Other receivables H A Yk 421 712

26,053 36,035




146

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited Annual Report 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SRR R R M 5E (4])

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=F—NF+=A=+—HILFE

21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days to
its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables net of allowance for impairment of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date, which approximates the
respective revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting
period.

21.

B 5 N H i EWRIER @

AEBAHESIEFPFHEEHR
BOENXK - U TARSHRERR
BEETRAERBEBNEERH
EVHMEKE SRR Nk EKRE
SERFEEREE) NERE DT -

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\FE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBFTT

Less than 3 months L H31E A 18,990 23,614
More than 3 months but less than 6 months % 318 A 1B >R 61E A 2,165 4,073
More than 6 months but less than 12 months Ze @B L1218 A 323 2,966
21,478 30,653

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The ECL on trade receivables
are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past
default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtors’
current financial positions adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operated and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the current reporting
period.

REBEFENEZREREFAEBLE
HEAENEANEREERX-
EWE 5RO FEREEBKER
BREBEEELIS2ZEHANBERER
G 8 M BT A #) B AT B AR o
mEL G XREFANEER
Z EBERARERMETENERK
EEALEREE BSOS RER
K ARG R IR R EEL B

AR B B - S TR S e
Y EABR ST ERE R -
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21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

As the trade receivables related to a number of customers with
common risk characteristics and the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s difference customer bases.

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables based
on past due status of customers collectively that are not
individually significant as follows:

As at 31 December 2019 R-ZBE-NAFE+=ZA=+—H

21.

B 5 K H i EWRIER @

HRRXZEEER I RZEAEER
REREH#ENERP BAKEMNE
LEEBRAERITRBAIRAER
HRNBARAGTEREZR A
NBEBHRENEXEHERGE
— RO KENTRETFE -

AEERBEPOHERKREK E
Bl AEBRHE SRR R
ERHEREERLAET

Weighted
average Gross

expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount  allowance

b #E S 33 IREEE
BFHMEXRER mE  REER

% RMB’000 RMB’000
Bk AR®FTnR AR®TR

Less than 3 months L HA31E A

More than 3 months but less %R 3@ 18 LR 6@ A
than 6 months

More than 6 months but less % X 61{E A 18 4 712 A
than 12 months

More than 12 months % 12{E A

1.60% 19,299 309
23.57% 2,833 668
50.34% 650 327

100% 3,308 3,308

26,090 4,612
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21. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

21. E5 K H b FE YR FR 38 (@)

Weighted
average Gross
expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
¥ FREEER
As at 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H FHEHEXEX R B
% RMB’000 RMB’000
Aok AREFTIT ARETT
Less than 3 months LHR3E A 3.13% 24,376 762
More than 3 months but less % R 31& A 18 2 A 6 A
than 6 months 15.55% 4,823 750
More than 6 months but less % 6@ A8 LR 12{E A
than 12 months 31.07% 4,303 1,337
More than 12 months % 121E A 100% 7,741 7,741
41,243 10,590
The movements in the allowance for impairment of trade B oEWRERERKEGENE
receivables are set out below: BARAT :
2019 2018
—E2-hEFE ZZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETE

At 1 January n—AH—H 10,590 6,810
Effect on adoption of IFRS 9 KEBEBREREENEORNTE - 1,684
At 1 January, as restated W—H—H " mE5 10,590 8,394
Written off as uncollectible (note (@) #fi 5 2 3% U 8 7 18 (M 5% () (1,171) —
Impairment loss (reversed)/recognised i, {& 18 4 ([B] ) /TE 22 (4,807) 2,196
At 31 December R+_A=+—H 4,612 10,590
Note: MEaT -
(a) The Group writes off trade receivables where there is information indicating that (@) MBEBEERE  SEEMEE S ERE
the debtor is in serve financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of REBAGEEFHEE B kEIR
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has BEASMNEBACDHERAE HEARE

entered into bankruptcy proceedings, whichever occurs earlier.

BEFEARFEERLE) -
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22.

23.

Deposit with Bank/Bank Balances and Cash 22, i 8 48 17 13 757\ RITFR/
) Al
IRITH ﬁ% NE&
Deposit with bank BITER
As at 31 December 2018, deposit with bank of RZZE—-NF+=_A=+—8" fE
RMB20,000,000, with maturity in May 2019 (2019: nil), carried 17 7(_ A B #20,000,0007T ( =
interest at a fixed rate of 1.75% (2019: nil) per annum. —NF:#) R-_ZE—-—HNFHA J
B BEEEMNER/IT%(ZZE—N
F ) o
Bank balances and cash BITHEERRAE
As at 31 December 2019, cash at bank carries interest at RZE—NF+_A=+—8" 1
floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates of 0.001% to TR S ESHETEFHRFEHEF
0.60% (2018: 0.001% to 0.60%) per annum. £0.001%ZE0.60%( = T — )\ 4 :
0.001% % 0.60%) st & F| &, -
Trade and Other Payables 23. ESZ RHEMENARIE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET AR T T
Trade payables B 5 R IE 32,561 29,612
Payable for acquisition of property, - BE R
plant and equipment HREEEER 1,933 1,933
Promotion fee payables ERNHEEER 8,250 14,535
Accrued payroll JENTE 1,902 1,213
Non-income tax payables IEFT 1S TS 3R 3,233 7,404
Other payables and accruals HENRBERERER 27,797 26,671

75,676 81,368
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23. Trade and Other Payables (Continued) 23. E G K H it FEAS FRIE (@)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented BIERXZHE A2 28 5 EN
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: HIENRE2HBAKRZER O T

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Within 1 month or on demand &8 A Rkt 5k 25,195 24,492

After 1 month but within 3 months 1B A EERIEAR 7,366 5,120

32,561 29,612

The average credit period on purchases is 30 to 90 days. The AEEFLS TFTHEEHNRI0ZEN

Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure He AREBBHERNT KRR SR
that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe. REIRBFMEENGATELEEE -

24. Contract Liabilities 24. B EE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARE&ET T
Advances received to deliver goods T EYTE WK 10,775 7,587
The significant change in contract liabilities in 2019 was mainly TE-NFEYBEBENEEEI/LE
due to more sales orders were received from retailers. BRI EEEEIEZHH

EEIE o

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2019 Bz NLF+=_A=+—H
that was included in the contract liabilities as at 1 January 2019 " ERNESEBERETHIIZZ
is RMB7,587,000 (2018: RMB16,236,000). There was no —NE—A—BHANBBARE
revenue recognised in the current year that related to 7,587,000 (ZZEE—N\F: AR
performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior year. 16,236,00070) - B EHE - —FEJE

THETEBEBMNERBELSF

JEHERULA -
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25.

26.

Refund Liabilities 25. B8 &

2019 2018

—B-hEFE —ZT-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETF T

Refund liabilities BEaE 3,894 4,164

The refund liabilities relate to customers’ right to return products

EREXTSPRBEEBE=ZFAR

after three months of purchase. At the point of sale, a refund BRERE -HHED EitewmR
liability and a corresponding adjustment to revenue is EHEmMARERREME  WKK
recognised for those products expected to be returned. The AEHEERAZ - ZEBEFBHERE

Group uses its accumulated historical experience to estimate
the number of returns on a portfolio level using the expected
value method.

REMASE

RHE S S5 F R A
KF L EY B -

Bank Borrowing 26. R1TH
2019 2018
—E-hF ZZZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTR AR®BTT
Fixed-rate bank borrowing TE A KR 1T 18 K 9,650 12,550
Carrying amount repayable (based on scheduled repayment ENEE(REBEERHZEENTE
dates set out in the loan agreement): BXAE)
2019 2018
—E-hEF T—N\F
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR®TRT AR%®Tr
Within one year —F R 9,650 12,550
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26. Bank Borrowing (Continued)

Notes:

(@) As at 31 December 2019, bank borrowing of approximately RMB9,650,000 (2018:
RMB12,550,000) bore interest at a fixed rate of 5.22% (2018: 6.09%) per

annum and due within one year.

(b) As at 31 December 2019, bank borrowing was guaranteed by Mr. CHEN
Qiyuan and secured by the Group’s land and buildings included in property,
plant and equipment with carrying amounts of approximately RMB3,186,000
(2018: RMB3,433,000) and the properties of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan.

(c) At the end of the reporting period, the Group has available unutilised bank loan
facilities of approximately RMB500,000,000 (2018: RMB67,450,000).

27. Provision

26.

27.

R1T 8 =K @)

Bi&E

@)

HE-_Z-—NAE+-_A=+—H1Lt &
TR AR 9,650,000t ( =% — )\
F: AR#¥12,550,0007T) @ FEEFRA
522% (=% — )\ & :6.09%) * — F " 5|
gge

HE-_T—hhF+—A=+—81t R
BHRERBREERER YHEEEKEE
EAHARK3186,0007T (=% — \4F :
AR ¥E3,433,0007T) ¥ BE K& E
PR BSUR 50 A /) BB B MUE AR -

REWRBR AEERERBHRITERE
Z8E 4 A AR 500,000,000 (=& —
N\E - AR #67,450,0007T) °

SHRER

Provision for litigation

SREAEH R A
2019 2018
—F-hEFE ZFN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARBTT

At 1 January and 31 December

R—A—BM+=ZA=+—H

338 338

Details of the litigations are set out in note 36.

SRAARF R M sE36 -



BIER(EE)ZRARLE —Z-AFFHK

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z =%

RS MR MISE(8)

—NEFZA=+—HIEFE

153

28. Share Capital and Reserves

28. IR AN K f# 18

each and resulted in the issue of 630,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and increase in share capital of HK$63,000 (equivalent to
RMB54,000).

All shares issued during the year ended 31 December
2019 rank pari passu with existing shares in all respects.

(a) Share capital (a) Bg=
Number of
shares
BB
'000 RMB’000
Fhe AREFIT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each ~ &A% 00.10 7 & i@
Authorised: EE TR
At 1 January 2018, RZE—N\F—HA—B ZF—N\&F
31 December 2018, +=—B=4+—RB ' ZZE—hE—A
1 January 2019 and —BRkR=ZZE-HAF+A=+—H
31 December 2019 10,000,000 880,500
Issued and fully paid: BEEETEENZT BN :
At 1 January 2018, RZE—N\F—HA—B ZF—N\&F
31 December 2018 and +ZA=+—H8 =ZZ— hi—ﬁ
1 January 2019 —H 3,161,811 277,878
Exercise of share options (note) & 171% f% 22 HA#E B 32 1T IR 2= (Fft 3%) 630 54
At 31 December 2019 —hE+=-_A=+—H 3,162,441 277,932
Note: On 29 March 2019, 630,000 share options were exercised at HK$0.1 W RZZE—NAF=A=-+LB UFT

fi& 7 # 0.1 7T 771 7 630,00017 i AR
T (15 A F %17 7 630,000 4% I
AR - N T % 63,000 (A A
R #54,00070) MY BE A

HEz_ZT—hh&Ft+=-A=+-—
Bl BTBEEITHORENSH
AR EREZTER S -
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28. Share Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

0]

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account of the
Company is governed by the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The funds in the
share premium are distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the portion of the
grant date fair value of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Company that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 3.

Statutory reserves

Statutory reserves are established in accordance
with the relevant PRC rules and regulations and the
articles of association of the PRC subsidiary of the
Group, Bawang Guangzhou. Transfers to the
reserves are approved by the directors of Bawang
Guangzhou.

Bawang Guangzhou and Bawang (China) Beverage
Co., Ltd, which are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in the PRC, are required to transfer at
least 10% of their net profit (after offsetting prior year
losses), as determined under the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to statutory general reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital under the PRC Company Law and
the articles of association of the entity. The transfer
to this reserve must be made before distribution of
dividends to the equity shareholder.

28. A K f#1 @)
(b) REMBEHEERASE

0]

(ii)

(iii)

B & & R

/NS N O R
FMERSEREEER)
FTRE - -RRIFEBEREZIR
B H H#E - A A
BRRNEEREXBH I
HOER  SAARAAR
FEBRANHERKRDIK

AR e

WA M

BY AR IEE /B RE
RITROEBL  SERER
THHORA R BERREH
S XA & A R
REXRFERTER -

& TE R

AEREIREBRETE
R R AR D) A B 7K S [ 1)
TEREARBEERERMND
NBEERRIL - EREW
BEEBIEMNESZSH
JE ©

BEERMEBE(FE) K
BABERQR NP BEKL
MANEEE DK HAR
EhEeFRAURAED -
88 a M &R D 10%H) %
i A (R A F R 8 8
BRIOE-REERHE
EERBESREIRER
ENZERNARER
i TE B R 1 B AN #950% A3
- EBREZFEBARR
A A DK E A
17e°
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28. Share Capital and Reserves (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Statutory reserves (Continued)

Statutory general reserve can be used to make good
prior years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into
share capital by issuing new shares to equity
shareholders proportionate to their existing
percentage of equity interests provided that the
balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Merger reserve

On 20 December 2007, Bawang International Group
Holding (HK) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, acquired all the equity interest of
Bawang Guangzhou amounting to USD12,500,000,
which was previously held by a company owned by
the Controlling Shareholders of the Group, at a
consideration of the same amount. Accordingly, the
share capital of Bawang Guangzhou was eliminated
and a merger reserve arose due to foreign exchange
differences.

Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the operations outside the PRC into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB).

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the deemed
contribution by the Controlling Shareholders in the
form of non-interest bearing loans to a subsidiary as
detailed in note 34(c). The amounts are estimated by
discounting the nominal value of the non-interest
bearing loans to the subsidiary at an effective interest
rate.

28. A K f#1 @)
(b) f&0Ei%HE R AE(®)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

& TE 0 (48)

—RORE WA B
NEFENEERAIE)
TRAE B IRERET A A
MR ANREE DL AR
FETHB LS E R
BEBRRRA HETA
BRITRONEHRIBIRN
A EARE25% °

& O & i

RZEZE+F+=_A=+
H ARa2EHB AR A
FITEERSEEER(ES)
ER DR LAREEKUWE
% JT12,500,000H) B £ &
M2 E0HE %= (2 B B 15 AR
BRRBEBN — KR HF
) A &FELTEIMNAK
AWK HEENIE D
EHEXAHEE-

B R o 0

ERFEERRREREE
SN TS 2 B # k(B A
RE)FMEENZAER
EE -

H fih & i

HibfEE IR LR ERE
%8 7 BT 5 34(c) Fr it 2 Fft B
NN BERELZ
BEZITE - ZBERNE
BRARTROELSL TLAF
ZREBEEFMNEEEEKR
HE -
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BHR5

<

29. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions

(@) Pre-IPO share option scheme

The Directors approved a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
on 10 December 2008. On 8 June 2009, the Company
conditionally granted certain Pre-IPO share options to the
Directors, senior management and employees under this
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. The exercise of these
share options would entitle two of the Company’s
Directors to subscribe for an aggregate of 4,200,000
shares of the Company, and forty of senior management
and employees for an aggregate of 10,332,000 shares.
According to the grant letters signed by the Company and
the beneficial individuals, the exercise price of each share
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is either at par
value of HK$0.1 (four people under this tranche including
two the then directors), or at HK$1.19, representing a
50% discount to the offer price of HK$2.38 under the
global offering (thirty-eight people under this tranche).
Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme has a vesting period of one to five years,
commencing from the listing date and the options are
exercisable until 8 June 2019. During the year ended 31
December 2019, a total of 956,760 share options granted
on 8 June 2009 have been lapsed upon the expiry of
option period. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
other than exercise of the 630,000 options, all the
remaining Pre-IPO share options have been lapsed upon
the expiry of option period.

() BROMBZEmMMEARED

BEEgN T N\F+=-A+
E%tt/ﬁéa 8 & A1 BB R
B - RZZEZTAFRNAN
= IEIVIN/N Tﬁﬂﬂ#mm%ém
NABRERBERETSME
E SATEEKRENREER
FETERAAMBERBER
BoTHEHEBERERFAA
AMBEERBEARAAEH
4,200,000 % + LA &40% = %
EEEMEERBAQARMN
& $£10,332,000 #% #) 4 F - 1R
BAQAREBEZZARIN
BYfRM saX FAEEAHE
IREFTEIE T ERRMDITE
BEAHEBMESTOIUAREIL
Pl HABEMEBES)NET
119 B2 KBETHEE
7 J2.389T #50% (38 A F£ It
B - MBERAFBEEBER
BAEEENSNERENS
B AR tHBEHES —F&
AFE - FAEBRELNEAR-Z
—NENANBRIITE RE
2 NF+=-A=+—8H
FEFER EZZTZENFARA
J\ B 3 7 H956,76010 BE A% #E
ERHERRSAN - REE

—hE+-_A=+—H8%F
E A - B 7 171#630,000 % # HA
B EME R ARBEER
MR EHRECD R EERE R 2B
KW o
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29. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions

(Continued)

(a) Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

—

X5 (&)

20. R EEHEIURNAE

HRAMBESAMARERR
i®)

Details of specific categories of Pre-IPO Share Options HRAHEMANERETS A
Scheme are as follows: AfERan T
Number of Contractual life
Date of grant instruments Vesting period of options
RTBEH BREHE BEE BRESHHE
Options granted to directors 8 June 2009 1,260,000 1 year from 3 July 2009 10 years
RTES0BRE —ZZNERANA —ZENFLRAZHRH—F &
8 June 2009 735,000 2 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZETAFNRANA “EENFLR-BRAME +&
8 June 2009 735,000 3 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
A DAY= “ETNFLAZARH=ZSF T
8 June 2009 735,000 4 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
= A DA “ETNFLtAZHEHOF &
8 June 2009 735,000 5 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZTAEXANA “ZTNELAZARHEE T&
Options granted to employees 8 June 2009 1,669,920 1 year from 3 July 2009 10 years
RTEENBRE —ETZNERANR —ETNFLAZHEH-F T&
8 June 2009 1,868,160 2 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZTAEXRANE —ZTNELAZHRHTE T
8 June 2009 2,066,400 3 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
“ETNERANA “ZENFELAZARHZE T&
8 June 2009 2,264,640 4 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
= A DA —EENFLAZHEHIEE T5
8 June 2009 2,462,880 5 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
—ZTNEXRANE —ZTNELAZHRHAE T
Total share options granted 14,632,000

RTHBRELH
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29. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions

(Continued)

(b) The following table disclosed the movements of the
Company’s share options held by Directors and
employees for the years ended 31 December 2019 and

2018:

For the year ended 31 December 2019

2. LR BEEELURGHE
MRS @

(b)

FABERE-"T-AER-
T-NFt-fA=+—AL%F
EEEREARAREL S
&) -

BE-FT-hFt+=-A=1+-
AL

Number of share options

BREHAE

Outstanding Exercised  Lapsed Outstanding

Exercise  at 1 January during during at 31 December

Date of grant Exercisable period price 2019 theyear the year 2019

R=B-N% R=B-N%

-A-H t=A=t-A

BFEH AT EH 1@ HARTE FRTE FRAEN 18 7K 4T B8

Directors 8 June 2009 4 July 2014-8 June 2019 HK$0.10 630,000 (630,000) - -
5% —ZThEF “T-mNFELAlAEZE #1010

~NANR —Z-NEXANE

Employees 8 June 2009 4 July 2014-8 June 2019 HK$1.19 956,760 —  (956,760) -

EE —EENEF —E-MELAmE B9
~NANE —Z-NEXRANR
Total 1,586,760 (630,000) (956,760) -
At
Exercisable at the end N/A
of the year
RERE AT TEA
Weighted average HK$0.76 HK$0.10 HK$1.19 N/A
exercise price
MEFHITREE #1076 #7010 Exi.19 TER
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29. Equity-Settled Share-Based Transactions
(Continued)

(b) (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. LR BEEELURGHE
MRS @

(b)

(#&)

BE-_Z2—)\F+=-_A=+—
BIEFE

Number of share options

R E
Outstanding  Exercised Lapsed Qutstanding
Exercise at 1 January during during  at 31 December
Date of grant Exercisable period price 2018  theyear  theyear 2018
RZB—N\F R-Z— N\
—A—HR +=A=+-H
®THE AIAT {8 HA 1TE(E WAITHE FRTE FRNEY 8 AR A7
Directors 8 June 2009 4 July 2014-8 June 2019 HK$0.10 630,000 — - 630,000
S “ETNEF —Z-NELAMAEE #Bx0.10
NANE —E-NERNANA
Employees 8 June 2009 4 July 2014-8 June 2019 HK$1.19 1,024,000 - (67,240 956,760
E& —ETNE “E-MELAME ET119
NANR —Z-AFEXRANE
Total 1,654,000 — (67,240 1,586,760
At
Exercisable at the end 1,686,760
of the year
RERKATE
Weighted average HK$0.77 N/A  HK$1.19 HK$0.76
exercise price
MEFBTEE w077 TEA EBrii9 70,76

The options outstanding at 31 December 2018 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.43 year
(2019: nil).

In respect of the share options exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2019, the weighted average share
price at the date of exercise is HK$0.167 (equivalent to
RMBO0.147) (2018: nil).

RZE-NF+_RA=+—
B R 1T {6 BB A M O 00 P
BFBRENHR0ABF (T —
NFE:#) -

RBE_ZT—hLE+_A=+
—HEFERITEOERE
TEEEMNMEFEHERBT
0.167 (#HE MW A R #0.1477T)
(ZE—N\F 8|
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30. Statement of Financial Position of the

30. AN 7] B 7 AR R 3=

Company
2019 2018
—E-hEF —FT—N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wz AR®TFx ARETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries RIELETHBRARHKE —* —*
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H A B 50 319 42
Amounts due from subsidiaries & UG BT /B A B FR A (a) 7,130 11,925
Bank balances and cash RITEGFT RS 404 1,247
7,853 13,214
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables H b & 1< 5RIB 1,830 1,748
Amount due to a subsidiary FE A< Bt B8 A B IR @) 2,768 2,706
Net current assets REBEEFRE 4,598 4,454
Net assets EEZE 3,255 8,760
Capital and reserves B #E
Share capital A% A 277,932 277,878
Reserves ke (b) (274,677) (269,118)
Total equity A 3,255 8,760

*  Less than RMB1,000

Approved by the Board of Directors and are signed on its behalf

by:

CHEN Qiyuan
FER RSIR
(Director) (% %)

* ZerEERAR1,0005T -

E=N

CHEN Zheng He
PR IE 88
(Director) (% %)

REZSHELH TIALRARE
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30. Statement of Financial Position of the
Company (Continued)

30. AN B B #& AR R 3/ @)

Notes: B &

(@) The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. (a) FHEEER RETIREREE -HE
During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Directors have —E-hFRZT-NF+ZR=+—
performed an impairment assessment based on the expected credit loss HIEFE ZEFMREBHEEBRAER
model. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of amounts due from ETTREIGE B#EZ_F-NLF+=A
subsidiaries was approximately RMB7,130,000 (2018: RMB11,925,000), net of Z+—HiIt BRMNBARKESENE
accumulated allowance for impairment loss of approximately AR®7130,000(ZZF—NF: ARK
RMB1,649,750,000 (2018: RMB1,620,297,000). 11,925,0007T) * MR REHRBEEFHEHNAR

#1,649,750,0007C (= F — )\ F : AR
1,620,297,0007T) °
(o) Movements in the reserves during the years are as follows: (o) EEFRNEEHBEROT
Share Capital Translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
R A% 8 EXEE ELRE -y i wE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTIT ARBFTT ARBFTT AR®TT
(note 28(b))  (note 28(b))  (note 28(b))
(Mi=E28() (FIzE28(0)) (P =E28(0))
At 1 January 2018 R—ZZE—NF—HF—H 1,400,650 2,814 (110,497) (1,556,404) (2683,437)
Total comprehensive expense for  4F A2 E 52 4258
the year — - (657) (5,124) (5,681)
At 31 December 2018 and R-_Z—N\E+_A=+—8H
1 January 2019 E—_Z—NAFE—H—H 1,400,650 2,814 (111,054) (1,561,528) (269,118)
Total comprehensive expense for  4F 2 [ 57 ) 4258
the year - (321) (5,238) (5,559)
Effect of share options ERENTE
— Shares issue upon —1TRBEITZR’ND
exercise (note 28) (Kt 3E28) 1,165 (1,165) - - -
— Lapse — KX — (1,649) — 1,649 -
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—hhF+=-A=+—8H 1,401,815 (111,375) (1,565,117) (274,677)
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31. Lease Commitments 31. A ESE

The Group as lessee EEEESEREA
2018
—ET-N\F
RMB’000
AR®T T

Minimum lease payments paid under BELLEHOENZ
operating leases during the year: = EMEERIE

Production premises HESM 9,575
Office premises WRIGET 78
9,653

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

REBRHR - NEETAIEENL
EHOZARKERSAZDHE
UM

2018
—E-N\FE
RMB’000
AREEF T

Within one year —F AR
In the second to fifth year inclusive

Over five years HFELE

8,683

F_E2FERTF (RREEERFENRN) 8,038

435

17,156

As at 31 December 2018, operating lease payments
represented rentals payable by the Group for certain of its
production premises and office. Leases were negotiated for
average terms ranging from 1 to 30 years. Rentals were fixed
over the terms of respective leases.

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties
which the leases were previously classified as operating leases
under IAS 17. The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
Group adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to
recognise lease liabilities relating to these leases (see note 2).
From 1 January 2019 onwards, future lease payments are
recognised as lease liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with the policies set out in note 3,
and the details regarding the Group’s future lease payments are
disclosed in note 18.

BE_Z-N\F+_-_A=+—H
b BEeHENRIBESAKRERKE
MOEESBMPRAEMZAfTEE
T > MEHZENFHHRKF 30
FrAE-MeRAMBONIRNIE
5 o

AEBEETHENABRA ME
EYMENHELREBR S ER
FITHIBEEHE - AEEAE
AIRNEPREAZRAERTERE
ZHF16HE - REBEEET A & &
ER—ZF-NF-—A—BHRETH
VIRE NERBSLEHEERN
HEBBERMT2) - BT —NF
— A — B REMEIMI KK
R RERNHEHENKSERE B
AAmERTERAREERE A
£ 18 R SR & < FRRR 60 4B B A% A I
18R E -



HIER(EE)EZERERIE —ZB-AFFHK

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS MR MISE(8)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ =T —NF+=A=+—HIFE

163

32. Capital Commitments 2. EAREYE
2019 2018
—E-hF = —\F
RMB’000 RI\/IB 000
ARBTRT ARBTT
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of 7 £ Bf # ft 3% & < it

property, plant and equipment contracted butnot KA BB EW X K E

provided in the consolidated financial statements R AE BB AR R 343 343

33. Retirement Benefit Scheme Contributions

(a)

(b)

The PRC

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries participate in a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme (the “Scheme”)
organised by the local authority whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
Scheme based on certain percentages of the eligible
employee’s salaries. The local government authority is
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
the retired employees.

Hong Kong

The Group also maintains the MPF Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong in accordance with
the requirements of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and related regulations. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, of
which the contribution was matched by employees and
subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per employee.

The Group has no other obligations for payment of retirement
and other post-retirement benefits of employees other than the
contribution described above.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of approximately
RMB4,108,000 (2018: RMB2,645,000) represents contributions
payable to these plans by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the plans. There was no forfeited contribution under the
defined contribution scheme.

R KRR E SR

(@) FEXEHME

RETFTEBESE AR TE
MEARZSEMTEBREE M
BZH“&T%ZH%ZEEET FOR K
& A E B (Tax 51 &81)) - B R MY
BRAARRIAZ AR
ttﬁ:2u+§‘JTﬁi”°E=-'?i‘mB(ﬁ$%
BEAEINEKEENZH
BIRE -

(b) FEEBE

BEAEH M AEEFTE ([ETE
ertEl]) BB GG &R E -
REBENRBFABREBRENS
BEEBRILBESIE - RE
CRTEICEERASEEHEME
ENFR BAXTAZHZES
BE AEEKRHBEBEIE Z5%
MErgEHR - BREENHEK
PR A% 7T1,500 °

AEBBRT RS WEE
&% R EE N RKEEAMENK
(LSRR

EakxP 2 B8HITHARE
4,108,000 —Z & — N F: AR
2,645,000) - B AN & B ph i F 5T 814
FEHM—TaEDLEMNZH#HR IR
EEREMNEFTEMMEMHER -
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34. Related Party Transactions

(a) Related party balances

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the following balances were outstanding at
the end of the reporting period:

4. BRI S

(a) FAEEFSEREA

RV BRRABWESIN
REHRMREKREN 2 &R0

B
Maximum outstanding
Amounts due from/ amount during the year
(to) related parties ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HL%F

B/ () A% E R E ERANEBRENEH
2019 2018 2019 2018
—2-0fF ZF-\F% ZB-RE ZT)\F
RMB'000  RMB'O00 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR

Non-trade related
Guangzhou Xiaoxiao Supply Chain
Management Co. Ltd (“Guangzhou

FEZHRE
BN eS8 E 32
BRAB(TEMNN])

Xiaoxiao”) (note ) (P £ - 8 8 8
Guangzhou Bawang International Hotel &M % F BB AE 5 AR

Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Bawang AR(EMBLER)

International’) (note i Cid); 101 86 101 87
Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., BMB L HRER A A

Ltd. (‘Guangzhou Bawang’) (note i) ([EM BT ) (Pt i) 242 346 346 6,860
Trade related E5HE
Guangzhou Bawang BMEBT

(notes i and iv) (B i Aiv) - 4,266 4,266 -
Guangzhou Chenming Paper Products B T 2R R ER A 7

Company Limited (“Guangzhou ([EM R (H =i fiv)

Chenming”) (notes i and iv) 1,150 — 1,150 —

1,493 4,706

Trade related EEYEL
Guangzhou Chenming &M & 58 (B i A iv)

(notes iii and v) = (2.274)
Guangzhou Qiancai Packaging BNTEREBEVHER

Materials Co., Ltd. (‘Guangzhou NABEMERD

Qiancai”) (notes il and v) (B i Av) (47) (214)

(47) (2,488)
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34. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(a) Related party balances (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

)

(Vi)

Guangzhou Xiaoxiao’s sole director was Ms. WAN Yuhua, mother of
Mr. CHEN Zheng He, the chief executive officer and executive director
of the Company. The balance was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Guangzhou Bawang International and Guangzhou Bawang were
ultimately 100% owned by Mr. CHEN Zheng He. The balance was
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the management
of the Group considered the credit risk of the amounts has not been
increased significantly and thus the allowance for impairment
recognised during the year was limited to 12-month ECL. As at 31
December 2019 and 2018, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

Guangzhou Chenming and Guangzhou Qiancai were under the control
of the close family members of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, the director and the
chairman of the board of directors.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group prepaid advertisement charges to
Guangzhou Bawang. The credit term granted by Guangzhou Bawang
was based on the invoice date. As at 31 December 2018, the amount
due from Guangzhou Bawang was unsecured and interest-free.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group prepaid a trade deposit for
purchase of packaging materials to Guangzhou Chenming. The credit
term granted by Guangzhou Chenming is based on the invoice date. As
at 31 December 2019, the amount due from Guangzhou Chenming
was unsecured and interest-free.

The credit term granted by Guangzhou Qiancai is 30 days based on the
invoice date. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the amount due to
Guangzhou Qiancai was unsecured, interest-free with 30 days (2018:
30 days) credit term and aged within 30 days (2018: 30 days).

34. BB

R 5 (&)

(a) FRBEX R (1)

GEE

(i

(iii)

(vi)

BN -—EREEFELLE
AEBEERTEMRATERERE
BEENER  AHEAHREERT .
RERWIEBREE -

EMNBTEBEMEMNS THEES
T EI0%Z LR - A& HE
BH - £ E RTIEEREE -

BE-T-N\FR-Z-NF+=
A=t—-RLFE A&HEEEE
RREERREE —ELFEREL
o B A T RE AR RO R (B R 2
BR1I2EANEREERR - K=
E-NAFN_ZF-NF+-A=+
—H ERHRERAZIFEL N
o

BEMEAMEMNGER2HERRT
EERTEMRABURELEBEZ N
REERK B HIE o

BHE-_Z-N\F+ZA=+—8"
EEENTENBIEESER - &
MEBILRTORERBARIAESEEES
RE - RZT—NF+ZA=+—
H ENBETOHEEERERTR
RBE -

HE-_ZF-AF+-_A=+—81"
AEEBENTHERMNEAREM
HHBEZENR - EMNEBLE TH
ERERNEREHRE-R-F
—hE+ZA=+—H EMNEH
MERMGEHEERRRE -

HEMNBRATHEERARE
A#30A -BE-_T—NER_-FT
—N\FE+ZA=+—8it ENE
MAER KA B EIER 30K
B (ZZ— \F:30K)  30KA
BH(ZZF— \F : 30K) °
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34. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Related party transactions

34. B R X F @)

(b) BBAXH

The Group had the following material transactions with its

related parties:

AEBHEAEBEBATETAT
BARS:

2019 2018
—B-hAE —ZET-N\F
Nature of transaction RMB’000 RMB’000
XH5ME ARBFTRT ARETET
Guangzhou Bawang International Meeting and catering service
expenses (notes i and iv) 227 575
& )N %5 E Bl R gaNESRRBEE (M EEifiv)
Sales of materials (notes i and iv) 27 —
& MR (B i M)
Guangzhou Chenming Purchase of packaging materials
(notes i and iii) 3,898 4,195
BN =8 B 5 BF 4 R B AR (B 2 D)
Guangzhou Qiancai Purchase of packaging materials
(notes i and iv) 146 478
EAR RS B 2 A R ER B AR (P =i M)
Guangzhou Bawang Rental fee of production plant and
office premises (notes i, ii and iii) 8,638 8,638

BEIMNEFE EEREMBRQSGANES
(B &£, i A

Notes: M RE

(i) The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were i) EERAE PTG TIR—BEE
conducted on normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of BRAAPEBBERDET X5
business and the basis of consideration for the transactions is the REEEASBITHE-
prevailing market price.

(ii) On 1 December 2017, Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou Bawang (ii) —ZE—+tF+_A—HB FBEEM

entered into a lease agreement with 3 years terms of lease from 1
December 2017. The monthly rental fee for the production premises,
office premises and a staff dormitory are approximately RMB719,000 in
total. Details of which were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 1 December 2017. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying
amount of such lease liabilities is approximately RMB7,772,000. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has made lease
payment of approximately RMB8,638,000 to the related company.

HEMNETEXBERE 8— A
—BR HEHRAEB-_T—tF
+ZAB3F-HEME - WAL
FrMBIEEMAEEEHNAEA
R ®719,0007tc S BE#H R AR =
T+ E+ A BABHHRE-
-2 hF+=-A=+—H
It HEAEREEENAARE
7,772,000 c BE T —NF+ =
B=t—BL&EE S$EERBEK
ARIZA T #H AR HES,638,000 7T H
e
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34. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b) Related party transactions (Continued)

(c)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii) The related party transactions constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are provided in the “Report of the Directors” section to the annual
report.

(iv) The related party transactions constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, however, they are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, Ms. WAN Yuhua and Guangzhou
Bawang undertook to provide a loan facility to the Group
in an amount up to RMB140,000,000 for a period from 15
March 2013 to 31 December 2016 and were further
extended to 22 January 2018. The long-term loans were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable by 31 December
2017 or earlier as determined by the Group. In 2016, the
Group had drawn down HK$35,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB29,323,000) under the facility. On 3
June 2016, all the loans were fully repaid. On 22 January
2018, the available facilities of approximately
RMB140,000,000 were expired.

34. BB R 5 @)

(b) BB X 5 (1)

(c)

MiaE - ()

(i) BEABIXZWRLEMRRAFI4AE
FIRENBERSRFTEBER
5 EMBRBEVUAT B AKE
BEFERSEEERE] —EF

271 -

vy BEEIZSZTAELHHRAEIAE
FIRENBEXSRFEBER
5 BREERRETLETRAUE
AR PIHR 2R E -

BREVR LA BEELLTME
MBETAFREERHEZS A
R %140,000,0007T #) & # &
FoHRA-_T—=ZF=ZA/A+
ARAE_ZE—RF+_A=+
—H TE—S$ERE_FT—
NE—AZ+ZH -ZZEKEH
EREEEAN - EEH - I
BEEEMNAENR-_F—LF
+-—A=+—B&HZHEE-
ZE-RF Z2EEERZE
# T 42 U8 7£385,000,000 (49 &
A R #29,323,0007C) e =& —
NEANA=ZB FAERE R
HEE - —_T—NF—A=+
— B 4 A K #140,000,0007C
Al KR B H o
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34. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel of the
Group during the year was as follows:

34. BT R 5 @)

(d EEZEEASRM

AEERFATEZEEAERDN
Bzs s mT

2019 2018
—E-NHF —FE—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®TE

Short-term benefits SRR 4,162 2,427
Post-employment benefits BEEL 213 F 428 180
Termination benefits BiR 1R A 500 -

5,090 2,607
The remuneration of key management personnel of the REBFTEEEBAE ZHAH

Group was determined by the board of Directors, in
consultation with the remuneration committee, having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

35. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from
Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

EERATMEZE e mEME
ARBETIZBEETED -

Bb.MEETHELENEBHER

TRFAAEEXREREZDNE
EEH - -MELTHELNAERR
EREIAKRRAERERSESRER
EREXRTHIBAMELTHRENR
EMRE-

Financing
1 January 2019 cash flows 31 December 2019
—E-NEF mg —E-NE
—H—H HeRE +=ZB=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARST AR%® TR AR® T
Liabilities afE
Bank borrowing BITHE K 12,550 (2,900) 9,650
Lease liabilities HEEE 38,133 (7,001) 31,132
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35.

36.

Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from
Financing Activities (Continued)

35.

METHEENEEYER

(%)

Financing
1 January 2018 cash flows 31 December 2018
—®-NF L —E-N\F
—HA—H ReRE +=—B=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTFT ARETFTT
Liabilities afE
Bank borrowing RITHER - 12,550 12,550
Litigations 36. LR

In prior years, a lawsuit was filed by a former subcontractor
against Bawang (China) Beverage Co., Limited (“Bawang
Beverage”) in People’s Court of Songjiang District of Shanghai (the
“Shanghai Court”) in respect of a dispute in the material
processing contract between the former subcontractor and
Bawang Beverage. In 2013, Bawang Beverage received a civil
order issued by the Shanghai Court, which accepted the
application by the former subcontractor for property attachment
prior to lawsuit to freeze Bawang Beverage’s bank accounts in
the amount of approximately RMB873,000 or other assets
under the name of Bawang Beverage. In connection with the
lawsuit, one of Bawang Beverage’'s bank accounts with an
amount of approximately RMB309,000 was frozen.

On 20 June 2014, Shanghai No. 1 Intermediate People’s Court
gave its final ruling that Bawang Beverage was liable to the
former subcontractor for an amount of approximately
RMB643,000 and a legal cost of approximately RMB19,000.
Accordingly, provision for litigation in amount of approximately
RMB662,000 was recognised in the profit or loss and an
amount of approximately RMB324,000 was settled in 2014. As
at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the remaining provision of
approximately RMB338,000 has not been settled.

R —RAI0EEELEENRIRE
ARER ([ B8 AR ) 3t #% a1 2
BEBE(FEDRBBERAA(EH
FHEEDZEAORBMIERAUS
MBIREREFDR RZ2FT—=
F HEIHHKE T EEBERAR
FHRE EBERTIET A H
BRIV EREZBRE RET H
T REHRTTER P 49 A R #873,0007T
BT BTHEMEE - £t
Fad BEKBEFP—@ERITE
PR 7 # AR 309,0007T °

EBE—"FHRARERR-_F —
MENAZTHEERKE - B
FTHRBMERAASPEIINOAR
¥ 643,000t BEE S MO AR
19,000 T KSR FA & © BE AN » FRAART IR
Bt AR #662,0007T B # 2R
HEBakEMEERERPAE
B R - 4 ARMK324000TE EE
E-E—NME+_A=+—RHIE
ERAEBE BHE-_T—HLFN_F
—N\FE+_A=Z=+—"HLEFE Y
A R # 338,000 7T B9 bl & 51 12 1% & 45

H o
>t
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-—FT—NF+_A=+—RHIFE

37. Principal Subsidiaries 7. FEWE A T
T-NER_T-N\F+_A

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December S
2019 and 2018 are as follows: =

T—B ARAREIEMBRAF

Place of
incorporation/  Issued and
establishment  paid-up/registered  Proportion ownership interest and

Name and operation  capital voting power held by the Company  Principal activities
ARAHENERER
£ RIRKEHE CRTRBRZER BRENREELH TEER
2019 2018
ZE-hF —E-N\E

Direct Indirect Direct  Indirect

EE HE HE BE

% % % %
Forever Giants Limited BVI USD1 100 - 100 — Inactive
Forever Giants Limited EBRZEE  E FREES
Bawang International Group Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding and trading of
Holding (HK) Limited household and personal
care products
BIEBREEER(FH) B AT RE® Hx&“iﬁ%ﬁ%&
BRAF BAAERER
Hong Kong Bawang Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 — 100 Trading of household and personal
International Trading Limited care products
BEEBIERESHD 3 ol EHFAREARERER
Bawang Guangzhou (note (@) ~ The PRC USD67,500,000 - 100 - 100 Manufacturing and trading of
household and personal care
products
BEEM (P (@) A % J1.67,500,000 ERERRBREAERER
Bawang Beverage (note (a)) The PRC HK$180,000,000 - 100 - 100 Inactive
BEHH (M) R E 7 7£.180,000,000 FREEY
Guangzhou Fanmei Electronic  The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 - 100 e-Commerce and trading of
Business Company Limited* household and personal care
products
BMNRBEEFHBERAR FE AR #1,000,0007T EFABREHERXAREAER
Em
Guangzhou Bawang Trading The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 - 100 Trading of household and personal
Company Limited* care products
BNBETEHERAR" H AR #1,000,0007T HHXAREAEREER
Note: Bt 5
(@) These entities are wholly foreign owned and limited liability companies (a) WEEE 7%5’\ FREKZINEEEREFD
established in the PRC. BEREMLER

*

For identification purposes only * EHRR
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37.

38.

Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets
and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of both years or at any time during the years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
wholly-owned subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A
summary of these subsidiaries are as follows:

Principal activities

37.

Principal place of business

FEWE QT @)

FREJFIEARARAEETRRIEY
EREEEXBEREENEBE WS
NI K/ j%%pu%%@{/\/\'ﬂﬂ&ﬁ
BRAAIZHBH<TEMNBRITKM
NEURLFITR ©

REFhE-—FEHRN BHELCH
o /8 X R B AT EAAE AR BT o

RE2HRHR ﬂ%ﬁﬁ@%%@
MEFBEANZENBAR
MEARz EEXEKH WT

B ey
° % E

Number of subsidiaries
Koz NCTE g =]

2019 2018

FEER FEEKME —E-hFE ZZT-)N\F
Investment holding The BVI 2 2
REER RBRIEES

Investment holding Hong Kong 1 1
BEERK o

Event After the Reporting Period 38. REHIBRE 1B

Since January 2020, the outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavius
(“COVID-19”) in the PRC and the subsequent quarantine
measures imposed by the PRC government have had a
negative impact on the operations of the Group, as most of the
Group’s business are located in the PRC. The Group has had
to delay its operations due to the mandatory government
quarantine measures. To ensure prevention of COVID-19
infection, the Group has implemented strict internal control
measures to carry epidemic prevention work into effect.

The Directors have closely monitored the development of the
outbreak of COVID-19 and kept regular communication with its
customers and suppliers to understand whether there would be
any significant impact on the Group’s operation.

Based on the current available information, the Directors
consider that the COVID-19 outbreak will not have any material
impact on the financial position of the Group. However, given
the inherent unpredictable nature and rapid development of
COVID-19, the Group’s business might be materially affected
and the Directors will closely monitor the overall situation and
development of events in the regard.

BE-ZS-TF—AB ZFT—NLF
ﬁﬂﬂ#ﬁaﬁﬁﬂﬂwﬁ$ﬁ§
B URBREBRNKI D XKML
PR BEE S BB E SRR
amﬁEIME’FiTEE@

mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂam%%hm
$$@T THEEZ - BERH
THRSMNEN SEEE T EED

MBS R I 4 i - R BT R TIEA M
& o
EEMEYERETHERENE

B B P A RS AR
@’D)\TQEIEE?%;TE.H’jﬁ**H:
REREE -

BERENEE EEMRAEFT
RENBEBRTSHERNMBEMRR
EXfTWNEEENZE - KM &
R T RS E A /T A 8RRk
BER SEMEBAJEIFEKR
FE EEMBEYBEITEFED
ERIERME-RERE -
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hEMEHRE

As at 31 December 2019 R=Z—hF+-_A=+—H

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hEFE ZE-N\F ZET—+F ZE-RE ZZE—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT AR®TRT ARBTIT AR®T
(Restated)
(FeE75))
Results 4
Revenue S 258,158 293,922 264,215 264,229 232,181
(Loss)/profit before taxation 7 Bl (E518) /1 & (15,164) (1,196) 19,231 41,094 (110,422)
Taxation T 18 9,064 — 4) 2,610 )
(Loss)/profit for the year ViN/NEIE DN L
attributable to ZFR(EE)/
the owners of DS
the Company (6,100) (1,196) 19,227 43,704 (110,425)
Assets and liabilities EERARE
Property, plant and WE - BE L&
equipment 98,305 115,021 132,403 137,237 155,284
Prepaid advertising fee ENESEER - 649 392 212 44
Biological assets EYEE - — — 457 426
Net current assets/(liabilities) RB) & E/ (& &)
FE 53,732 50,661 37,843 13,305 (56,852)
Total assets less current BEEBLERRD
liabilities afE 182,426 165,682 170,246 150,542 98,432
Loan from controlling i RN
shareholders - — — — 54,946
Deferred tax liabilities BT IEEE - - - - 2,031
Net assets EEEE 158,660 165,682 170,246 150,542 41,455
Capital and reserves BERK#E
Share capital A% X 277,932 277,878 277,878 277,878 256,705
Reserves wE (119,272) (112,196) (107,632) (127,336) (215,250)
Total equity A 158,660 165,682 170,246 150,542 41,455
(Loss)/earning per share iz (E518) /& F)
Basic and diluted (RMB) EXREHE
(AR (0.0019) (0.0003) 0.006 0.01 (0.038)
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